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Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 82% in the last 3 years
from £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Cur renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Number of loans
Qver the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive's review

Our Group was Iin 2 soiid gosition cornng out of

the lockdown response to Covid-19, and our

husiness 1as continued to parorm roousty

frrougnout tre vesr This year bas ceen some

unforecasted grow s N value C° certain dvisens

prmiarity drven by the ncregse

ergy prices

Fern Trading Jimyed ["the Company” or togemer

with 1£s subsia aries "tne

Group’) orsistert

) targeis C

grovets for sharerolders over the long term, with a
redictabie growth, thisis

durng maore Chailenging

s 5“d

IMore han

focus on steady and ©
paruculary irmportact
economic congiions Ye have a diversifie

rrature busriess tefitting a Group w

12 years of t’acmg hstory and ambition The Groun

0

comprises more than 300 corrpanies that rave
CRersicc In A rarge of cectors over many years
gereranng steady long-terrm grow:h for cur
shareraiders We operate in essertial sectors that
we axpect ta perf:

latlity

orm steadidy througn rmarket

we have heen able o add
1 ard divers
"GLgT sCeking out spporturt2e .
naw adjacent sectors. [hese sectors pfcmue ue

o

Frorr s secure hase

ncrerrental expansio Canuon - 2

with a plotform 1o continue 10 expand 1 tne with
our existing strategy foday, our Group comonises
arergy, preperty lencing, Bealtheare infrastracture
use buitding dvisions. We nave

o be g sigrincant pre

fibre ard no arown

sence within our maost
ne Uk's

solar energy ana 1.7% of the UK’z o-zhore wing

3

establishea sectors, producrg 4.2% ©

S

~

energy output, and cuwlaing & £281m shiort and

rrecium wenn iend ng business tnat factitates the

corsructican and imrproverren” of hormss

throughoat tre LK

share price

ootng, welahead of o

energy proe forecasts ang erergy forward ates

over tne per.cd inaddition o ~%aton Tns

the vale of our energy divisicr was

L performarce across

Cresse
supportef' by sold operationa

all sectors and somea organic growth in newer

SECICYS.
We rermrair a supncrtve ermployer, with mare than

1,690 full-trme staff ac-0ss the businesses thal we
own and operate, and imairect ermnployment
provided for hurndreds more people through

contracts thal we have Ir place.

A reflectiono

Our busrness r

our year

aized £404m frorm mvestors tns year,
delivered consistent reven.es while growing capgita.
CRLICYIMENT, resuit:rwg in E712m norevenye

wererated acress the Croup (2021 £425m) ard et

e

assets of £E2 215 (2021: £1.888m rostated)

The financial staterments for tne year show an

operating proft cefore @ax of

tod outcome of a

£d4ir against our

ExL srral accounteig profit Trus

oust perforrrance 3 a direct result 0f energy

5]

produced by the group being sod for higher ofices
durng tne year Airmcst 50% of cur busness
Corprises renewalle energy generating assets such
as solar energy sites and wina farms, wrich orovide
[ona-termr revenue streams These are tent oraily
divers.fieg across & rarge of technologies € mitligate

wor and

against poor nerformance n a specic sec
contriputs towards steady. predict
however. their values can stil be 'mpacied

zble share price
Qrowti,
by changes in pricing ard demand. We nave seen
consecutye a7d materal increascs in long term
erargy pnee
globally over the st 15 maontbs as tre glotal

forecasts and energy forward rates

ecoromy recovers from the Cov d-19 pandenic,
and seeks a wormative sources of erergy as a result of
the conf.ctin Uxraine Aong with :nflanon, thesa
rcreasen the value of -

vear wiln ng acquisitior of sites i cormp ementary
itischions, as we'l as using our experise o ent

tre UK commercial and industr



ucticn on a large wind
start cf the year we added
rine additonal sites 1o our reserve powes divisonr
which brings Js up to 26 sites ir total (compared to
ten sites for most of 2021} These sites have
performad anead of expeciatons, qerweratir‘q

ERITOA of £26m (2321, £irm) durng the yea

vell-established biomass

division conundeas o e

Our success®ul and w

o welh and ias
del vered stable r
Bl

returns since acouainon in
s yea”, | have beer particularly pleased t

rong perforrmance at
Sneaterton, CArgha, which was acouired in Ao
cJel, nrwmqt neavail

bus-ness During the

» 2015
o see

QL newest Bomass site n
abie addit’'cn o e

year we gurchazed a Wasie-
o-Erergy
Ayrshire. Tre facility ha

v facit by currently under constructionin
s beerin development for
three years and will be capable of processng over
185,00 tonnes

Fousenog, commercial and industnal waste whicn

per annurm of nen-recyclable

would otherwise
This wil generate 17 MWe of low carbon electicity,
enough to power 30,000 homaeas. It wil be the first

2 sen: o landhll or expored

large-scale, subsidy free waste-to-energy projectn
wastern Sootland and proected completion date 18
in earyy 2024,

Owver recent years, many of Our energy assets have
peer under construction which nas contriputed to
our prevausly reported accounting losses. This g
typical of such businesses during growth phase
even when cash generative, because finance costs
h as depreciation,

division nas now reached

and accounting charges, suc
exceeded revenues. This
our target size and secior sniit

Acco
a-:countzmg proft before tax of £48m aga
budgeted zmall accounting profit. Tnis stightly
larger than exgected proft i due to the maturity of
the portfolc ard higher energy prices; resulting in
ircreased revenues from our energy dvision as we.l

rigly this year | am pleased to report an
inst cur

as an increase in infiation 12z explamed below).

Cur property lend:ing business makes UG around
27% of the uroup and comprizes sno‘t and mediLm
term secured ioans to expenenced property

crofessianals Th|5 established part of cur business
corringea to perform wel!, following a short pericd
of stow down during Cowd-19 wihnen we
rrentonally chose to wr te fewer loans, Our average

‘oan bock wag 182 inans tmis year to UK borrowers,

Curwrsding division has always operated at
ervative lcan 1o vaiue levals {elow 70%), in

to valuable secunty f
Ty values
ras served the Group wel since mception 12 years

order that it mamntaing access

there s a reduction in proper This strategy

ago. and it has coerated through pericds of change
several umes. The Gro J[‘ 1S ta‘mng 3 naturally
cautious apzroach when assessing new enaing

opportunties in l\ght of th
cuticok To gate, the C—.ro ip nas lent £2.2on of
Hon i 2810, suﬁ'ermg

rorg rack reco

changing economic
property loarns aimce nception
onty £6m in captal losses. This
s the result of cur careful acg Nirothic secior,

0ac
comprsing discipined due diigence, conservative
toan-to-value raucs and an ability and willinigness to
redLce activity in this sector dunng times of
eCconomIC uncerainty We will conanue o adopt

this approach tnroughout the coming year,
and 4% of the

Groug and 1s broacly performing well Qur
Rangeford Holdings

The healthcare division makes L aro.

retirement villages business,
Limited ("Rangeford”) contnued o sell apartments
af three sites, commerced constructicn of a fourth
village in Cherisey, and acgar
near Cambridge during the year Sales at tme

ed a ffth location
Cherisey siie are exgected (o commerce in 2024,
while construction at ine Cambridge sie s
expected (0 start in 20238 with the fairst sales
commeancing in 2076

Our fibre division was established n 2019 ardg
rernains an area of growth for the Groug, now
compris ng of six operating pusinesses Qur

residential bus' nesses, Jurassic Fibre, Swish Fibre,
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ef Executive's review

Cigangt and Allpoints Fibre are building u.trafast
o the premises” broadband networks in
regicns of the UK whicn nave been overloored by
larger operaters. Giganet pravides connectivity Lo
homes and businesses acress the UK using Citytibre
and Openreacr nmfrastruciure anc Viinh s a software
developrnont compa
proprietary scfiwase to allow Internes Service
Frov ders to szilicon

Y which has developed

ety ':y over whoesale enabled

networ<s, Inciuding Allooints Fibre. Yorbaoss is the

UK orly dedicawed enterprise fibre network tc 'ocus

on providing connactivity to businesses ir Loroon

=

the year, our residenrtia: fibre pusrezses

contnued 1o invest captal n expanding ther

networks N the domre Courties, the Soutn and

Southwest of Englana, ano are now onpoarding

CUSIOT eSO tner retworks, ge erating recurnng
Group Our state-of-

nasworks are able to meet customer

revenues for the the ar:
r dernand “or
hohcr Breadband speads required as a result o
More working=-romn -Nome and ncreasad Liage of

viceo-or-dermand services. In London, Yorboss has
=0 continued fo build and Fas instailled over

r 100Gk Es
fibro to up te 15,000 butinesses n C.'emtfat Longor

by 2027

iCORm of dbre with: a commitrment to cffe

Whist our fibre divisio” ternains ir a growtn phase

for the next 3-5 years we do not exgect 1t 1o regort

an accounting oroft

Towards the erd of the year, we added a new

property developer (G the Group, wib the

r£85m Elvia s aa

acguizition

of Favia Formes (givi

establishen nouse culder develop g rid-market

family horras in Loncon commuter towns ard

vilages Whie tms represents a very srmail part of tre

LD, WE £.ar TO grow i in a reasured way over

swiItt g0 ulirate target o deliver

ar incl.drg 200 h gk guatity

Inflation and Interest rates
Trie hgher rate o
has been respe

finflaton expenenced tis year

rsible for some of the

outperformance against expectations in the

Corpany's shac price. AM Treasury forecast that

high inflation wslkety to be precentunt| 2025, as a
=)

resuil we expect to rec revenue for the

WO I

energy generaed w.inin cur energy aivisior, and &
higher value from tre goverrmeant subsides that
sorne of ©

our energy sites bareqt from, im;re

tre velue cf those sites, Howaver, 3 short e d of

e at which the Group 1s expec

o renoywanie energy s RS WEe DWW

ir value from d scourted orojected future

rthe ime they are expected 2
operale fcr, typ;ca.ty 20 years o more - the

[+
W
¢
—r
o3
(T

outlook for long term inf ation were to roreas

impact or our share pree sh o
Lecause T woud mcrease tha reve
sites wold expect to mrake, ir contrast oA

re.atvely fixec cost oase.

ne expected rise in interess

reture to normal after a significart perod Gf very

low rates The mm

ediate impact of this on our

bleiress 15 expedled (o be broadly neutra
p v

Siiglets
cur Croup s imentionally struciures so gz Nnotto
experence sigr hcant value eros on wn
rates change Weo continue to take a CabZiOJS

gpproach withir, s wrere tre

cur ending busine

[15)
w

rising interest rates are felt more clos Pty ang we
have the zpiity 1o recuce (he number of

Cu
o
w

we write, or altar the rick oref 2 of our :cans

trroLgh reducirg e 1 va Le rahos Or CausiNg
activity in certan car she mearkes snouid “hat

fee aopropr ate
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Chief Executive’s review

Current trading and outlook

Since the year end, the Group has continued to
perform steadily from an operational perspective
and in lne with our expectatons albeil we nave
seen share price growth ahead of target due to the
cortinued increase N long term energy phce
forecastz Our growih targets for the Group over
the medidm and wong term remain unchangea, and
we continue to focus on manta:nirg a divers hied
blisiness that s capable of delvering more
predictable growth for sharehclders,

Tne recenty anrounced Siectncity Gererator Levy
"EGL wathin the 2323 Finarce Bill, wilt nave an

meact on the returs generated from our energy
GOrCCUo over the rext 5 yearz. This is ‘Lriher

discussed in the group firance review on page 27

Our property lending business continues to
perform strongty, witk increased deoloymantin this
sector since the year end We focus on short term
17 months;

cutloak

loans (our average carrent loan term 15
which enables us to adapt to changes in ¢
we feel this

swiftly, s particularly irmportant in the

current economic cimate

Periorreance in our heatthcare division continues

to be stabie, and we continue o remam pos.ive
[kl

a
about the opportunities to improve perfornance in

Sirce year end, we have continued to buld aut our
fibre networks, wilh constraction tracking in ne
with ou expectatons We continue to review
opooriunities for Doth organic and norganc
growelts suuporling our existing managerment tearns
irn delivering this strategy

Ir Cecember 2022 we have acouired the rights 1o
£25m of right to use mohile | cenzes from Trree
UK, thus making the first step towards i)ecommg an

wooile virtual network operator.

Cur mrx 0F business areas has deveicped over time
and may evolve further aver the years ahezd, dniven
by the overarching importance we p‘aace on
ragaurg the objectives of our sha-eholders This
should not be read as ary mdicaton cf & wholesale
change in e sectors i whic™ we opérate, but
ref.ection of the role played by the strategic

mandale ‘n protecting sharehowders’ interasts,

“Our mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance
What we do
Fern Trading Lirmited ("Fern'} 12 the parent cormpany I 3. Lending division
of nearly 220 subs- dianes (oaether the "Group’l Cur 1 We lend onia short and mecium term, secured
Group operates across five Key areas. enargy, D pasis o aiarge nurrbar of proparty profets onals.
heaithcare, lending, fbre and —ouse bundirio Over 50 provide “nancing to enable oher cugness
the gast twelve years we have built a carefuly : ld gszetz and cther resiaental and
dwersiec group of operatng businesses that are ! commercial properties
well postioned to delver long-term value and : : A
F N L* . J e . 4. Fibre division

sredictal e growt for our snarerolaers. : c . .
F 9 ) ’ : We ownoand ogerate fbre croadbana networks
1. Energy division Poacross varicus areas of the UK We build the
W gererate power from susiamable sourges ard I onetworks and connect them ' hemes and
sell tre energy produced eitqer directy 1o nausTial 1 busicesses o Lroviae Our Customers with sitrafast
corzumers or 1o large networks Many of our : fhbre broadband
renewalbie energy sites guahfy for governmens _— -
: | @ fuatiy 1or g ! 5. Home building division
iNCentives, whicn reprasent an acd oral source of 1 . _ . . .

i ) T Dunng e vear we successiuily emered ne ~ouse
rcore. We have aiso uulised our expertise n : . . . . "

topuilding seciorn acquirng Elvia Homes wkich nas a
remewable energy o consiruct faciities for sale o : ‘ ] .
‘ 7 I ostrong track recorg of developing homes In A
oNgoing cperalion. At year end the Group haa : o - N A
T ’ tosustairable manner Tne company 1€ a ful-service
21 sires unaer construction : ) o )
D oproperty developer, meanirg it provides services

2. Healthcare division Iofrom the design, to the engineerng and thea nsl
We provide homes and isisere “aciines 10 our Iocorstruchon o ersure the delivery of guality
ageing pooulation, and private hospitals which Dowarsrranzhip
provide heghi-gual ty healtncare services across
operational zites in the LUK :

Solar, wind,
biomass,
tandfilt gas,
reserve power

Property lending,
development
financing

Retirernent
villages, private
hospitals

Uttrafast fibre
broadband across
the UK

Residential house
building
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Our business at a glance

The strength of cur Group's strategy 15 1™ both : busiresses with comprehens ve buainess plans and
cperationa: diversity and tne return profile of Ef“ese ! strong management teams. This erables us to
pusinesses. Our lending business provides flex bility @ continue o diveraify our busness without
COMEram:siNg on the gquatity of our operations.
Over the past three years, we have successfquy

and sirong returns cver the short term. wiile cur
energy, nealthcare, fibre and home butding

givisions offer visiility and stabiiity of refurns over ¢ entered the fibre proadband sector a~d we now
the loriger term I own six companies with exci:ing olans o deliver

ltrafast broadband across the UK.
The scale of our business is ¢ key strengtn, enabling - - aeres v

LS 10 acquire large-scale establisned operations as
well as the opporianiny 1o erter new sectors with

mirirmial risk 1 the whole Group by selecting

Sector split* . Healtncare 1%

Wind 22% -,

Fern's sector
allecation

Reserve power 2%
- Solar 1%
~--Fibre 5%
Solar 20% -~
- Hestthcare 4%

Resarve power 626 - - Landhll gas ard biomass 9%

Otr\er 3/5

H B Owning and operating assets 69%
M8 Lending 31%

“Sector split s given by value, as represerted on the compeany balance sheet of Ferm Trading Limited.




Our business at a glance :

Where we oparale

YWe are proud that ine pus.nesses

with'n our Zroup make a positive

contrbution to saciety, rom

gererating clean erergy 1o the a\
creaton of nomes and the provizIon

of gualty healthzare infrastr.cturs /\\

Biprmass power stations

Wird farrms g
kesarve power olans

Renremert vilages

OB E - a®-

=
=

As we've Qrown OUr expertise In IHese setors it 2~ golo to use our indusiry know.edge o
toke oUr EXpertise o excirg coport.ni ~struching soas ar e wand farms i ;

=

rance, irelarnd, Polanc and —inlar
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Our business at a glance

Baking a difference
We are croud to cperate a Croup that rnaxes a
positive contnbulion o seciety acress the UK
generating renewable energy, providing guality
heaithcare infrastructure and ~etrement living and

h-speed broaakand to underserved

Energy

We currently own 220 energy sites, procucing
275GW 3 year Tnat's enough ene gy to power over
a millor homes

Ciur compinaton of technclog.es. sotar, wnd,

reserve power, biomass and lardfil gas
complarment each other well, helping tne U< C

meet 1§ energy targets irrespect.ve of the weather

The Fern Commurity Fund 1s a social enterprise run
oy ne CGroun, which works to distribute corrmunity
furnds gererated from our ward farms, This year, the
Fern Community Fund has awarded £1.4m o ioca.
commurnty groups, sugported 13 local university
studerts tvrough our Student Scholarship Fund,

and nrovided a wnter fuel subsi
wno are |

dy 1o 706 resigents
ocal to tne Group's assets

Healthcare

Cur retirement villages provide hugh-guality,
ntemporary | ving spaces, with 373

accorrmodation units currertly in place, and

stages of deveiopment offering

al accommaodation units.

schemes in various
over 500 addition

A friendly commiunity 1s at the naart of cur

retirement villages, which is wny in our
developmerts we provide central facilines and a

nub of social activity for our residents

Lending
The loan: we made during the year have nelped o
fund the construction of student accormnmaodation

and much needed residential properties

We continue to exterd ioans to 24 taxi drivers and
fleets o enable them Lo use electric vehiclias,
redicing carbon ermissions In our Cagtat.

Fibre
Through cur 9o VIS ON we are bulding out the
fore optic broadband network across the LK Four
of our managerrent teams are focussed on
Euilding out fbre optic braadband netwarks for
residential customers and small businesses, and a
Afth s building a fibre network to deliver enterpri
connaclivity, Our sixth is g software aeveloomen
compary aperat.ng ir the fibre secrer and

Providing Services 1o our groJp Corrpanties.

Within s
retwork provicing connectivity 1o over one mion

division we Fave plans 1o creste a

properties in the naxt three years, many of which
are in smatt towns and vilages that dor't currently
have access 1o internet connectivity fit for modern

ways of working ard comrnunicating.

Mot only are our fibre husinesses bringing
connectivity to uncerservec communities, they are
also generating emiploy ment opportunities for
young individuals via train.ng academics ana
apprenticeship scnemes, and are driving diversity 0
Telecoms, with one of our comparies having
launched a number of initiatives tc recruit women
into the secior.

Home building

Cur home building division utilises a high
proportion of sustanable timber frame constructon
methcds and installs air scurce heat pumps in ad
oroperties, eading the way in this sector and
helping reguce carbon emissions,

Int
Seafrim il i MR |
Mt Rt
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Our strategy in focus

Cur busi
Energy
Througn our energy divisor, the Group owns ana
gas and

INREsSIOs

operates 2nergy s es wrioh supply

elecmoty into the netwark, as well as construcunyg
e, Of the 220
194 provide

rerewsble energy sies for future sal
sites that we own and operate,
the

pos.ton as one of the largest producers of

energy

rerewsble energy, conmouting

renewsble energy fram gorrrmercial s
ir the UK tmergy sites are typrzally
s for many years
these busirs
2 of their poter

expected to

&

(98

=
g}
<

La

('E

oyer the long term

Renewable energy sites generate sower from

W

sell energy either

L_

sustamanie sources anc DIDOUTED

directly 1o large industral consumers or fo the
netwer<, Many of our renewatie erergy sites aiso
qual;.y for governmeant incentives, wn.cnresults na
f tre generated 2nergy benefting from

Cked

RGN ©

rates that are 'lo far a specified perod onge

a gqualifying site s cparancral ard accredtation has
been graned‘ Thus bas reduced some of the impact
of the voatlity in long-term energy prnce forecasts
A n2w sites built in the UK do not aualify for
historic governmant ncelves, we are tee ng maore

interest .n the market for stes lixe the ones we own

and operate

Owring and caer&:rrig encrgy ste

our strategy and corrently rmakes up almost 68% of
thie Group's net assets This nart of our Group nas

Did you know?

generated higrer returns this year than expected
due to rrarket conditions but crucially t has the
potential to provide stable relurrs over the iong-

term Tnis combination s

baiance rick =

nerate target retu ns for sharehcic

"Qur energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

Cue to the
gre aole to secure long-terne finaricing from

mManstream barks 2t comaett ve rates to enna

G rety

returns cur sharehclders expact.

Croup has ou'lt

experiise a CONt technaoiogies

cluding or s‘v‘GFE\
sunporied by reserve power plan
backup power o the Nat'onal Gne The Group

tnerefare benafic from d vers.fcat on within thi

part of its cuziress, since weaker caordiions for

encrgy producton from one techns
I stronger production el

o

logy ofe

sewhere The Groun a

™ its scale inth s

gains sigrificant benefit fro

as aLr ousires

vastty reducing the nisk to Group prefitablity if o
sete sufers an operat-onat Cisrat on.

If laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.

key to our strategy to
~d return across the rarge of Groug

oe

high-qual ty eneqgy sites we own, we

ree

rne, which helps us wo deliver the level of

s and lanahl gas,
ts whicr orovide

3

res:

=rS.

Uit
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Our strategy in focus

Iradaition o our UK sites, the Group is deveioong
sies overseas, njunsd-cuans that we Jnderstaﬂd
weil These present an atiractive onpaortunity as they
Bl or Qur sector expertise n countrnies at an
earlier stage of rerewable develc Currently

farrms in lrelarc and France and

Crment.
we nperae wing
solar sites in France ard Australia. We have several
nd sites urder construction in Poland, France

rd Australia

During the year we acquired nine reserve power
clants and one enerqy from waste site, Following
farrnz :n Finlang and

id Darengton

constructicn, we scia bwi w.nd
shorily after the year end we gl 50

Point, a arge so.ar site in Australia

Healthcare

Through cur healthcare division, tre Group
operates in the private medical ang retirement :iving
sectors Qur «etremert Iving business, Rangetord,
owns and operates two retirement vilages in
Wiltshire and Nortr Yorkshire and is currentyy
develcping three further sites for future operations

Qur private medical busiress, Ornie Healthcare cwns
trv Kent and
Hertfcrdshire, providing the very best level of care
in modern, well equipped hospita, facities.

and operates two private nospitals

Since relurning © norma, working patterns we have
seen an increase in the number of patients payirg

for their own treatment as tney face o
asts for NHS treatment Despite the Iiftmg of

rg wailing

2s5preaa resinctons across tre U+, Covid-19
contriues 1o affect the acute care sector wih a
stressed NAS and increased infection cortrol
measJras that reman ir giace.
Lending
Lending continues ta be & core part of our business

and hizs provided the Grouo with a profitatle and
cash gerershive sector over the past twelve years,
This weli-esiablished part of our Group mamiy
consists of property lending which provides
short-lerm financing 10 experienced professionat
ocroperiy develiopears, buy-to-
bridging fnance; ard develoo
dium term hnancing

let lanclords seeking
ment fnancirg,
which provides snort ard me

to companies

A key penefit of the scaie of our Group and of the
business that we h b LD UD in this sector 15 Qur
atslity to mitgate risk thFOJgﬂ having a large
rumber of shiort ang med um term cans spread
across srall projects o inalvidual borrowers We
proachively manage counterparty risks through

undertak ng careful borrower due diigence, taking

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.
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secunty over assets iynically on a first charce ba
arid mamntaining conservanve toan-to-velue rat os.
Mot all loans wiil perform as expected and tnese
rmeasures help to minim’se the impadct of

%)

performarce issues o~ an individual lean. This
further mitigated through the value that we lenc o

ndividual sorrowers, relat
which < currently spread on average across 182
toans, with an average incividuat loan of £2 3.

Fibre division

Qur fibre division imcludes fve ocperational
comparies bulamg fibre netwerks v the UK and
one software development compary.

Througn our resident al ~ibre bus rasies, we ate
bulding new phys:cal fibre networks for
communies 1nine UK anc so far have built out
fibre Infrastructure n undersarved oarts of Devor,
Somerset, Dorsetl, Witsnire, Harmpsoire,
Waorcestershire anc the Home Counties, 'We are
airming t0 pass over one milion homes over 4

rext thiree yoars

Building tnese ‘arge networrks nvolves connect ng

large datacertres and telephone exchanges in thie
UK with homres and busime

replac.ng the

25, effectively
e CopRer wres thal were .ad in e
falf of tne 20tk certury Jurassic, Swish and

Gigaret are vertic

liy integrated, as they Doth own

the fibre infrastruciure and also nave tre end

custorer reiatconship as the irternel service

ve 1o cur total tean ook,

-
wr

provider or 1SR Allpoints owns fibre nfrastructure
other 1SPs to the Aldpo

sel connectivity t the erd cuslomer

and will onboard irts network

Trrough Vorboss, we are buld ng a n

London to supply business-to-tus
errerarise Cornectivity direct to business

customers Vorboss bas installed over 500k of

fibre opt c cables in London since 2020 and ras
recenty talncned g singie 10Ghps product
rmarket, recogris ng that amoiticus London
busiresses wili quic<ly regare maore than the 1Gkps
cornectvity theyve relied or o date

We have seen ranid growin n our finre dwision

ince 2018 ard we expect this division S contnud

T oecore a larger

[Nl

nar. of our busiress over time.

(e Group expects o spena approximately £1bn of
cagital by 2025 w folhlits buila
more comrmunimes A neeg of ult-afast broadband.

plaris ard reach

Home building

Qur new home bulding basiness, Elvia s o ful
service nolsebuilder acaurring Lans, developing the
site, and subsegaenty selling the hormes to

~d widual buyers, Trese sites mclude a mix of cpen

il strive to delver
omes Trelbusressis

‘

marke: and alfordable rouses ar
n-gh gualty aspraucnal

growing fast web p"OJeCT_E‘d arindal turmover o

E250m and 600 howses pullt per year foreca

wihin tne rext 2-3 years




Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities 1o shareholders. They have a set of complemenlary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Panel Latham 0 Lo
Faul 1z Chief Executive of rerm and s respensibie for the day-to-day running of tne
5 alst a managing director of Octopus Investments Limited (O,

-

blusiness He
where ne has werxed since 2005 Ol s a key suppiier ¢f resource and experiise

to Fern Paul's dual role ensures that this reiationship works effectively and in the

scest rierests of Fern's shareholders. Paul has had various general management
a2

and intermal consuitng roles acrcss a number of sectors and orings with nim

a wealih of industry and business experience,

= Helth Willey "o o ooive Diar e

Business schoa: He alzo houwds varicus non-executive directorships and advisory
roles af high growth ard more matdre companies Inhs role as non-executive
chairman he s reiporsible for the effectve operation of the Board, as well
as its governance He bangs to the Fern business independent commercial
experience gaired frorn his tirme i acadenia, private ecully investment,

consulting and varicus hands-on operatonal roles.

Boter Barlow 07 a0l swe DoE oy
Peter ras over 30 years experence ninternational inancing of infrastructure and energy.
As 3 senior exectve for intermatioral Power, Peter was responsible for arranging over
$12bn of project and corporate funding, as well as bankirg relatonships and treasury
activities. He nas sperit over 20 years working internationalty for HSBEC, Bark of
Amerca ana Nomura, finarcing acguisiions and greenfeld projects in the energy
and infrastructure sectors His combiration of Board-level financing and energy
experierce over numearous energy sub-sectors, and his al-round knowledge of
all the sectors in which Fen operates, adas significant value o the operation of
the Board as well as its sirateqy formation and degloyrent

Thm Arthor 0o e Tlar

Tirn is a crartered accountant witn more thar 25 years interrational experience

as a finance director of both publc and private companies. 'mitizlly e worked

for Price Waterhouse ir Birrmingham and Chicago More recenty he was Chicf

Fimancial Officer of Lightzource Renewable Energy Ltd, a gickal leader in the
funding. devewprrert and long-term operation of solar phewvoltac projects,

Time brings extensive financial and accountancy knowedge o the Board as

well 25 an urderstanding of dynamic techno.ogy businesses gained from hig
executive positions
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risls

Menagement identfy assess and manage risks
ociated wiin the Grous's bus ness chectves and

strategy. Risks anise from extern
which are inrerent corrmercia

anicd rom aperat ional ris

cyiterns ard processes ampicyed within the

“¥E Conial

The princ.pa. nsks nat the Groun are exposed 1o
are dgescribed beow, 3.07g witn the niit;gau”g

‘
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fthe rarkes tre risk. ‘:‘u"e alst nclucs ou
th

within tre likeinood of e nsk has increased.

or rermamed tre same

business Overall sk exposure is managed across

e Group througn the dversifcatior of acuates

both by sector and geography

Market rlsk
The erergy s
siqmﬁcar:: wirbulerce snid tnere 3
arisk that forecast levels :;f noorme
are ot ackiey=d due narges in
wholesale energy pr‘ce" ofi-take
COMTracts o governrrent subsidies

Jae 0 th g turbuient ervironment,
the potertal for increased
nterventicn by the regu
arex.

Crnanges in Government golicy
mMay result nreduced roome
sreams wiihin the greup due to
additicral ievies.

Operational risk:

Leves of energy procuces ma

e lower than anucipaed due '.O
Lb-ogirnal weather conditGns

Cr periormance ssaes with
equipmert, whick may resuitin

s.A,n iFcant unplanties dcwrwt\f”‘?

Financial rlsk

Reverues ifrom energy
gmwﬁraﬂ a) or sale procesds
ffromitne sa s1tes; 9= enerzed
fror“ over :
expeciec due o fuctuausns r

forergn exchange rates

¢

—

.
i

Construction risk:
Construct or of tf'e
longer o7 s mor

a
artcipated dae G resource

w
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Mitigatlons Change

C\ Ntracts are enterad into wih c% fix the income for g
corucn of the energy gererated D/ Qur sites
Lor‘-gfr =i government backed offtake agra eme*‘tf E]

9]

nopace, such as t‘” Rercwable Gtugation Ceruhca

UROCT scheme 30% of our enargy ncome was

generaied frorn ROC revenus

We engage with the govenrnent and the Office of Gas ard ‘%
Eiacinicty Mariers (ORGEM™ o cortnoute 10 anirdusty voice increassd
with poiicy makers wad set future regulatory reguirenserts ltlue 1o rmarxat

irstaciliog

Lin :pr:dmtabwwty S the weather s mitigated through
diversificauon of lechinclogies 31d locetion of sites
Regu'ar servicing of assets 1S Jr’“"?’t a
are xept in good condittion ard riririse the sk that
assets are unavallable for a .onger penod.

Maragement ensures Only 3 small

FeyeLes 370 @Xﬁ-ECEEJt

L2

OU

o

rovertenish

Tre Group enters Aixed grice Conracts w i COnTrationt
VTIRTS @DDICONIEte W rad JCe eXpoiiure W INCre3sing Costs o
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk

Market risk:

txpected sales from custorners
are lower than anticipated duc to
ncreased competlt on from otner
providers.

A change in policy by (ne
regulators in favour ol larger
CPerators could impact Gur adiily
te deliver planned developrnent,
reducing revenues and efficiencies
gained from a larger presence N 3
pﬂrhpu lar ares

Constructlon rlsk
Construction of tne natwark
takes longer oris more Costly
than anuzipated due to ressurce
availabiiity or Increased cost of
raw rmateriais,

Operational risk:

MNetwork service is nterruoted or
unretanle leading to potental ic
of custorrers and reputationral
damagQ

St
St
e Ha

Mitigations

o B ot B o B AN S T TR

¢ Managerrert regularly reviews the compettive landscape

tﬂc?"n cal ecuprrﬂﬂ W\U“ lufﬂ lead tfnfc

in target build areas to ensure pians co not conflict with
sther alternative netwaork cperaios

Managemrert engages proactively with the Office of
Communications and the Governrmen: to ensure the
berehts of sraller operators are well uncderstood and s
MIersdly are Anproohnstely reorasenicd,

We are an active participant in retevant imdustry bodies,
par..cuiarly those representing alterrative network
operators

The Group has contracied with g numoper of diferent
SUDPUETS IO reduce the exposure to any one mdu Jai
ertity Selecuor of Qutsource partners 1S manage
shrouah a detaled procurement process with \ong term
vsibility of work allowing partrers to plar hinancial ard
pecple resources accordingly.

Where supply chain problerms are expacted for Critical
lterr s cur teams generally have 6 months stock of Gore,
duct and other matenais o hand, and aavance order

Our netwaorks sre builtin a resilient way with diverse
route options should a fallure ocgur in one route

Tris, ceombined with an aniity toidenti®y and resoive
connectivity [ssues guic<ly, minimises downtme cf the

Increased
{duc tornoqe
CoOmpentons In
the market}

increased {due
to Ircreasing
demana for
resource In
the sector as
alternztive
network
providers scale
bunles

fiaaad]
o

NG crhange




Risk M:tlgatlons Change

Market risk: « Thetezms pro .
rmarkepace aPCE are prepared (G enforce where needed if
& oan moves intc defagit

o« Ourloans are made at conservative Dan-tc-value ILTV) e
rabos with a maxrmum LTV of 70X

il uc“f:r& inflatiorn and intere
rates iead o a market-wice

affordsbil iy 1SSe, resu
drop in proee r.y valu,-
sectors of reat estate. This may
moact our a'f‘k“- v o reccover a

arin ful througn a efirance

ar sale

Counterparty risk: « Loans ace secured agarst physical underiying securnty,
Loans may be rmadé to uncuitalie sLcriasach arge over the praperty or other as
countersartes, imeacing our Lorrower These are typicaly on a firsicharge bass w0

ab lity to recover the lean calance ensure Maxamum crance of recovery shoulo en‘orcement

i ful acton be reeded

o Trorougn due angerce s porformed prior 1o wr ting

loans, iInciuding prcrer: or land valualons and credn
Checks 4ore on Dorrowe -5

« Wnere oans arn wiritien for as

7

&geS are COMEIT lete gniar o r

Heaithears/Home Building Divisions -

Risk Mltlgat:ons Change

Market ﬂsk (Healthcare and . Haﬁmnq con smt or urd:ve Ope md are optmized to
Home Building): maxirT e revenes and reduce the n;,k of wszes on sale ,%

A fail . Pouse prices coutd

- . nereased due
meact our a2ty to ganerate

0o ounstaile

expected reverur frorm the sa.e BCoONCITIC
of dpahmmty L cur retrement chmatel

wil 13_1 grd nouses b\J iby* e

Constructlon risk(l-iealthcare o Tre Grous enters fed crice con coriate
and Home Building): oy reguce exsosure W indreasng mzaienal costs J—
onstruchorn takes longer or « Tne Group ony works with reputab ¢ 3rd partes with 3 e
thar ant C pated ang track reco g of delwerng siriiar orojects NG cnarge

evailablity or

e ard procesu
{Healthcare): cal services We revew this
Trie prevention o injury cr

avondable ioss of e O our

pat erts s of utrmost imoortarce .
ard s cntical to "T“iair“ta:ﬂi"g &

Goco recutat-cn

resu*t of e

r
o
{
o
Q
0
5
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Principal risks and uncertainties

+
.

Risk

Mitigations

R A P Vb S O SRS TR T TN L Ta B T e s W H e bbb & o

Market risk:

Ar increase in base rates may
ncrease costs on debt facibtes,
rapacting e Grous's bty to

service debt as it falls due.

Liquidity risk:

Poor ranagerent of cash w.thir
the Group could mmpact the
Group's ability to reel obugations
as they fall due

Health and Safety risk:

Thea safety of our employees

ang those employed tirough
contracts are of paramocunt
rrportance There s a nisk Inat
acaidents in the workplace could
result In serious impary or death.
Cyber Security risk:

Anatisck onour T systers and
data could lead to disruption

of our operations ana loss of
custormer dasa. Loss or misuse
of data may resultin reputational
camage, requlacry achon under
GDOFR ard potential fines

e fR

« We employ a Chief Informat.on Secunty Officer "CISO)

« Where floating rate deit s in place bwnere interest varies
in line with an underly-ng cenchmarx ratel, the Group
enters into hedging arrangerrents 1o ©x 2 portion of “hese
payments throughout the erm of e facility. Aecging
arrangements are cutl nec it Note 21 ¢f the financial
statermerts.

= A cetzited casn fiow forecast iz prepares and reviewed
by management on 3 moniniy bas s, incorporating casn
availlakbility anc cash requirements across the Grougp, On at
teast 3 quarteny basis thes s shareo with the Board

» The Group moriters bank covenants on an ongoing basis
te ensure cont nued adherence 1 covenants. Where
COVENANTS Can't be met, forecasts are updated for the
tower cash available as a result of the restriction

» The Group kas a flexible fnance faciity wrich can be

drawn on at snort notice (o meelimmeciate business

reeds.

» We have devecoped rehust heattr and safety polic es in
cornpliance with 1SQ4500L1 across e Group to ersure
the we'l-being of our staf.

» Feath and safety traimung is provigeo 1o our stalf and
contractors on a regular bas s

whao 's responsible for data secdnty acrcss the Group and
reporis quarieriy to the Board.

e The TIST waorks closely witi our businesses 1o ensure
adequate standards of security ana Information
maragement are met

= Fach of our businesses that hold customer data has ther
own ced-.cated resource for 'T and secunty

Increased
{dus1c nse In
interest rates)

MNo ckange

No change

The strateqic report was approved Dy the Boara of Directors on 16 December 2022 and signed on s benalf oy

PS Latham
Director
1€ Decarmber 2027
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Corporate governance

Sacking 72 (1) statemeant

Tne Boarc consider tat they have adherec 1o the

requirerrents of section 172 of the Compan es Act
2006 {the "Act™, a~d nave, ir t;ood faith, aced na

way that woud be maost likey 1o oromaote the

success of tne Group for e ber]er' o TemBens

0 all sTakeholders and
atters set out in secuon 172011a-) of the Act

i the decisions

20 June 25227,

as & whole {having regard

taker dunng the year ended

erfcrmance of 115 duty to promote the

3 .c:;‘ the Group, the Boara has regard to a
numper of maters. Including the kel

e of any decisions N the .ong erm, and

zens to e v ews of the Group's key stavebolders
to buld rust anc
potential Impar
Boarn fulfils thes

ensure it fully undarstands the

of the decis:cnz it makes The

duties partly oy dslegation to
committees and the boards of suosid ary
unaertakings, who onerzte withn a corporate

governance framework across the Group

At every Board mmeeting a review of health anc
safety aCross ne group, Gnanciat and operaticnal

cerformance, as weall gg lega. ard regulatory

]

comolance, s undertgie. The Board aiso revicw
otrer areas over the course of (ne financia. year
incuding the Grouo’s business strategy, XKay rsks,
stakeholder relaicd mratiers, diversity and ircluzy ty,
e vironmental matters, corporate responsibility, and

coverrance, compaance and lega. matters.

Principal decisions
We define prncpa decsions taken by the Board as
those dec-sions tnaf ar= of a strateg ¢ nature ard

ficant 1o any of our key staxeho.der

der that the fo.owng are

saluating a-d deciding to move

ImCreasiNg winG operations, wh.ch s

aur renswabiles divis.on,

Group acquired 2 large scale reacy 1o corstruct
wind site 'n Australia This deploymert aligns
with the Croup’s strategy to conunue o
develop renewacle energy sites which orovide
pred:.ctable, long-term rovenue streams The
Board considered the opportunity &ra how it
aligred with cur clpectives 1o maxe a positve

contribution to the (:c-mmm:ty and ervircnmenrt

Trie Group decded o expand Nto our newest
division, hause builaria In May 2022 the GroJo

zcaLred Elive borres, a full-service property

d ._Joper Drovidirg u’r\uCc)f"‘”W e dezigr,
to the erig.neeting and then final consuuct on
to ansure tie delivery of gualty workmanshp
Civarsifying the Group's asset nase amd entenng
into ths new secior has been well thougrt

Gt with leng term grow ir und. The Board

assessed :he sratecic opportunities withimn the

cre deciding e move ahead with s
considerrg now this wouls impact

zegusiton,

existng businesses within the divscn ana row

it akignaec wit~ the Groun's strategic ol e

delivar long-term vaiug ang pracictable growin

for our shareho’ders.

Reviewing ang deciairg o rmove ahead with
inCreasing oiomasss cperalons whicn ic part of

cur renewah.es dvis on In Qomaber 2020 the

Group dL,qLu"Pd a large szale, waste-lg-energy
construcuon site in Scotland. Tas decicyment
aligns with the Groun’s strategy W centnue o

El

versity the Groun, deve

ares which provide pred.ciac

whaoesae prong charges rnire K erieqgy

rrar<el The Board consderad ine opportun ty

and how it atgned wiin our Soecly
2 we corribulion to the community

anc ervironmart
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« The board decided to changs audit firms via a
terider process for the year ended 30 Juns 2022
Tre Group had changed sgn ficantly zince the
orevious auditors were appointed and there‘ore
we were unabie [o relably assess the vaiue for

money we receved, Three firms underwent

tre iender process and Ernst o Young LLP were
selecied because of ther strong commercial

of our business, efficiert audit

methodology and valué for moneay

understarcing

Business strategy
Our business strateqy i set out on pages 11 to 14 of
menl prepares &

the Strategic Repott Managen
detziled Gro
Board orn an annua. nasic and

Lp nudget whicn s approved Ly the
forras the bass for
the Croup's resource planning and deployrent
decizions. in making decisions concerning e
cusiness plan, tre Board has regard first and
forarrost to its strateqic focus, but alsa to ather
maiers such as the rnterests o

stakencliders and the long-term impact of its

fits varous

actions ar the Groug's fuwre and repufation

Shareholders

Snarehclder relations ard generat~g sharehoicer
value s a <2y consideration when the Board 15
making strategic decsicns. ~ he pnme medium by
wrich the Group comrmun cates with shareho.ders
is througn the annual report
staternents, which aim 1 crovide sharehalders with
a full understanding of the Group’s ac
resutss. Tnis information is publisned on o.ur website
at www.ferntrading.com.

and finrancial

tivities and its

Employees
The Group's emn—‘.oyees are fundamentat to the
cverall success of the business, The Direcrors fulfl
their du t/tcurp yeas by

subsid ary Eoards which the

Croup also

antrusting oversight
Cheef Executive of the
sits on

The cirectors of the subsidiary undertaxkings

manage the day to day decision making,
and cormmunications with employees

treated fairly and are
and conditions.
reaiise that our emiployees wish to be

and ensure that people are
valued with respect 1o pay, benefi
We fuily
infarmed and consulted on matters affectirg thewr
work and to be invewed in problem-solvirg
ecting thear own arsas of interes: anc

[at]

responsitiaty The Group s firrnly cemmitted to &
of good commurication at sl tevels and we
a climate which constartyy
encourages e open flow of mfarmation and
idaas. Presently thiz includes month.y team briefings
at a local level and the punlication of morthly key
performance indicators covering ouput, operating
ana health ard safety.

The health ard safety of cur employees in the
workplace 1s a continual focus for the Group, given
its broad operaiona, business. The Jirectors review
Health & Safety Reporiing al each board meeting to
ensJre appropriate pohcies and procedures are in
place to protect the health and safety of cur
empiayeas and cortractors, Wnere there are
potentia. defciencies or ssues, these are followed
up and resclved on a tr*‘ely b s, with the Board

having overs:ght of the actions taken

The Group outsources actvites and management

of certain operaticnal actvities 1o exmmal suppiers.
Where activ ti2s are outscurced the Board ensures
that thay are managed by reputable supphers who
meet all the relevant industry and regulatory
commitments as well as treating employees farly
Expected standards are documerted in all service
contracts and adherence to these are continually
gh their service

siments Limited.

moritored by Board thro

agreement with Qciopus Inve

Suppliers and customers

The Group acts ir a fair manrer with all suppiers
and customers and zgeks o mantan sirong
business releticnshiips with therm This is achieved
by alt contracts beng negetiated through a fair and
transparent tender process which includes

assessing tne impact on the long-term objectives of
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the Gronp We ravicw Our DaymMen: Drocessng
tmes against contracts every s months to ensure
suppliers arc pad promptly and this informat on for
ne company 15 avalable on the www.gow.uik

weosite

The Groun ensweres 1t acts fairly and v a transparent
rmarnner to ait custormers across ali dvisions and
services, and actvely engages 1o resclve ary dispuies
Or defauits The Board ciosely monizors customer
metrics and engages witn the manager en: feam to

wndersiang the issues if business per'crmance does

Mot reed

customers expectanons

sirmernts Lomited

Jdmmptrut(v and company

Cemmunity and environment

The prowvision and operahon o sustainabie

-ucture is at the centre of the Group's

suateic goas. ihrough ts busmess actvities tne

aroUp seeks o make a posiive confr.butior 1 the

Community, enyv ronment and econarmy Cur
rerewable energy business s relpirg the U< mear

1S renewable energy targets, our prvate hosprials

have suoporled e NHS trrougnout the Cov d-1%

pancemic by providing reavmect for pon-Covig-15

NHS patients that ctherwesa could not have been

s
carriec cut, ang cur fibre netwo < wil give people
In rural Communities acceis 1o higr-spead

broadosn

Business conduct
As DireCtors our ritenion s 10 Derave espor sitly,
ersarng ma"sgerr(:f\, ooerate e buzmess wih

integnty ard o~ actordarce wiin the Rign staroards

of cordluct and goverrance expectes of a business
such as ours Gurinertion through our busiress
strategy outined on pages 1110 14115 W operat= in
sectors and work wth Giner bosinesses that share

our values

Business ethics and governance
The Zcard 13 responsitle or ensanmig thar the

activities of tne Group ard its various Husine
ducied N compuance with the law ang

Cor
applicable goverrancs and regulatory reqimes, and

i adherence with prévailr g best pract ce for the

re.evant mdostry This includes reviewird intarmal

controls, ensuring that there is an approornate

palance of skilig ard expenerce represerted on the

Boarg, and entunng that e firanciy) staterents

give a true and far view of the srare of
Group Furtrer detai. can be founrd n the
oF s on page 2%

o areas of corcern hayve Dren

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The Board's © N oerrpioyees, iuman [gnis,

SOC.a 3nd COmmurity 155ues, envirsmmant oolicy

and ani-corrucicn ard orbery mak
in e Direciors’ Report on pege 2% The 3care

alers Is aie

aclivew promaoles a corporate culture that is based
nethcal valves and b

vioors



Group finance review

Boview of financial statements

The purpose of
excianatory information o1 the financial statements,

rus regort 15 to provide additional :

I rnsasunng our performance, the financial
measures that we use Incilide those that have been i
derived from oLr reported resuits in order to

eliminate factors that distort year-on-year :
omparissns. These are considered non-GAAS
finarcia, measures. :

A reconcibation of these to the financal resulis can
be focund in note 28 of the notes to the fimancial

staterients

The financal staterrenis show assets at cost, as sucn ¢
e value that wa expeci o
es To that extent :

migy differ materially from

they do not reflect the futu

denve fror these busine

AcCoOUNNNY pericimanc

2022
£.'000
’Of-\t- (l- -Ddﬂ{e- -.J"V- 47 604 ”
dr‘g DOOP net 91’ RIOVISIGN S) S 350 901” ”
Cash o - 256,415
Netsess 793,169
Merassets 2,219,448

the share price and may not reflect changes i the
full market vawe of assels or businesses Gwread by

e Group

A number of acguisitions were made durng the
year, Incuding rice cperational rezerve power sites,
a wasta 1o energy site under constructon, a
construcion resdy wend farrmoin Agstraaz and
seventeen solar roottop stes under construction.
Shortly 2
Darlington Pont, a large solar site i Austrabia.

fter the year end, in July 2022, we sold

{restated) Movement
2021

£ 000 £'000

R RS R o Ak g s S

425 302
104 036 90,880 37%
(22 653) 70,267

385 512 (24,614

172, 478 82937
699,440 13%
1,887,842 331,60 185

Financial performance

Owveral, the Group has repored a profit before tax of
E£76m for the year ended 30 June 2022, wnich s a
£70.3m imaoroverre~t on the prior year (2021

£22 7rnioss restated) Overall ERITOA increased by
87% 10 £195m (2021 £104m restatad), which is
eration as well

primarly due to increased energy gan
as increased energy prices

Revenue increased by £287m to £712m (2021

“Earmings pefore interest, tax, cepraciation and amorlsaton

£425m) which was predorinantly drven gy 2 84%
increase n revende within our energy division. This
growth s two foig, Increased eneargy genearaucn
frara having owned/operated one ¢f our biomass
plants for the full year and a targe solar piant in
Australia reaching commissioning, and a significant
INCrease N average engrgy prices over he year due
to the misrnatch bebween supply and demand,

exacerpated by the ongoing conflict ir Likraine.
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Revande growin was sirGngest ir our energy

3 iaw a marked rmiprovernent in

ng activites decreasad 1o £42m {2021

division but we a. _vm ‘wr.lch has bean unlised 20

3
rancimg end canital rassed oy rew share

revenue from cur retrement villages Trs part
cur business ras repounded well frorm the sues to grow the business We have invesiad
~kdowns requires by the Covig-19 pandemic :

ihe fbre broagband s r ove

r25p0nse, seling 41 urits in the yeoar (an incregse of

52%1 and an increasing in revenue of £75
E£20.4m (2021 E12 7rr).

3
—
O

(3t the casr held at year end, £213 was held m
<ur energy, nome bulding anc 4ore subsiciaries

where there are a3 numper of construct.or and

{2 grow other garts of the business nfrastruciure projects under v\'ay, regLiring cash (@
abl

be read: l/ aval.

Cperating excenses (or tne year weare n Lre with

rrontie afer yaar end,

oUr expectat.ons, with the norease ;z arhy driver

Coodw I, at “541m 4
ot

fibre divscn as £5&87m resta

i has exparded Refnanong external deot to tobea S\g art nurroer on .*‘we
r : :

seCure wmproven terms ove quesition of some
s, for exarnple

s ofken “ave a marke: value

contrbuted (0 3 cecrease N inte
to £2Z A (2021 £36 10).

‘ncluded nthe resuiis this year is & proft of £28m

recegrised on the sale of twe wered farrs n Firand

convertion reguires tha i
and = rearsation of £ 6rn of ceferrec consideraton con { = Lol
narmea an the balance sheet a0 the ac
o soiar sites soud In orevious years,
Aot record the Balarce of tne additona, marker

Financial position

Conrniued shareholger riterest and mvestment has
TS grow 1 £2,219m (2021 £1.888m
rastated] I the year ended 30 June 2022, we
?21 188 for 3 total
A \2@41 £2.317m) The
ervinclude £1 j9 mo°
tC group resruciuong

Put simpy, "he market

generation busiresses (o indeed any cperat'oral

bus reszes! refiadts the valJe of future expecad

prots, Not the cost of Umply puyi

sach as solar vares or wind turbnes We pay
reatkar valoe for the sit

We aceu e wh oh ™May

exceed tre va e of identifable asses cuch as the

exterra fr’la“.f,\"lg
wthin the Sbre ar
DTOK rproperty !
E361m 12021

sar

renresantco 16

MRS G f

sGlar penels ard so dererates goadwil, wiicr

ents tre value of tre

fature ncome sireamns Goodw ll recogn sed will

y Lewnttern of tyercaly over the Ufe of the

site, as expectad relurns are realted
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Sector performance

Energy
As economic activity and global demand increaszed
throughout the year, s¢ too did wholasale energy
prices, anven by movements in commadity pricas,
wihnich resalted in Lhe cverall increase m reverus
earned across our energy sites These mar«es
acto s have resalted in an increase in revenus of
84% to £593m (2021 £322rr),
Cerresporwangly, EBITDA aiso incressed by 112% (o
E266m (2021 £126m restated; reflecting the
significant Increase in energy revenuc, Cverall otal
operating costs ncreazed by £1230m to £3527m

FY2022
Production
{MWh)

(2021
site Co

biomass sites and E23rm at our reserve cower sites,

~r
)
5]

o

s where £120m was incurred at our

rices for raw materials nave ngcreazed, on

average, by 65% due to anincreaze in the supoly

costs. Tre comoired cost of sales for the reserve

povwver and bromass sites increasad by £110m to
£217m {2021 107m). L shoulg be noted that the
revenue generaed by the biomass and reserve

v

power sites increased by £192m durng the year o
f353m (2025 £261my.

FY2021
Production
(MWh)

i A € R N RS THIAS L P & A rndcwdn o ke T oo T ITa

Biomass 1,050,038

240,226

Landiill Gas

403,355

Solar 554,858
Wind 851,214
Total 3,099,690

IPPe—

BBC, 503

250,526

141 336

517112

2,682,019

FY2022
External
Availability

o st SRR

97.7%

90.5%

FY2021
External
Availability

weeL wovrn o

D E198m restateq), partizby driven by increaced
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Healthcare

Fealmcare ooerat ons contrbuted F46m
(2021 £42m) 10 Group raverues for the year
eflecting the impact
Rangefore Tales of apariments at the retiremen:
villages have reboun
reguires by the Covid 19 pandernc response,

of increased revenue in

ded wetl from the lockaowns

ng 4l units 0 e year a0 norease of 2K

M
)
[AS)
C
[43]
i}

@]
3
0
i,

3
ed]
m
3
a
)
<

n
3
{

chy E76mto £20 2m

Lending

corstruction :
shutted shgntiy where we higve

nmber of smater loans withe the resicensial

sector, &< well 8 ger loans in the

85 More g

asveloprment sector and tne commercial sentor,

ERITOA for the lenaing division decreaseZ to a loss

of EB7rn from a profit of nearly £1 i tve prior
year Thie movement reflects a provision of £25m e
thoican ook aganst [oans o reserve power sites
and a provision agamst a resitcare loan of £14m
o June 2022, 239 was prov ded
against loans versus E27mon tne prior year.

In the year

Fibre
AS a redtively new division, g, the F
are rtoe g

o]
CUSICMEeTs I ther ~etwor<s By 30 J

Aithouan ouldn
and leads 1 & pryucal 3558t on hala

divisan alzoincurs large ogperating expenses as the
busineszes scale thar operatons and davelop
rrarket presence, Overali tre dvision reported ar
ERTIA ‘oss of L6554 (2021 €
150 lire with expeciatiors ard refiects the

23 5m nss), which

deovelonmantal stage of the dmsior.

As we build triese ratworks aut, the aszas will be
recogrises on the balance sheet at cost wh\ch
Cannot inc.ude future value which s expected o be
Generataed 35 the a2
generated Triuss o
e future value
5 mnciudeg

5 have baen interratly
arertto the share price whera

e expecied o ko genarztad from the

Home building
Elvia —ormes was acalared r May 2022 ara has
therefore rad lirnted impact on the Gnancal
perinrnance during tne yesr The Dusiness |

to deliver E78m reven

e and £5 5
20 Jure 20273 Resuis
guarter of 2025 ndicate

forecas
FBITDA for the y2ar erded
from the: first the husiress

is broadly performing inline wit~ expectations

Funding and liquidity
Crar srategy 53¢ secure \ong-term arancirg at

cornservative wvels from maingream banks 1o

M
]
=

nance rewns frorm cur erewable energy

bl i At year end we hiad £1,044m of
external project Srarcng with £441m of

headroom ava anie

Th's enatlas Us 10 acauire busiresses tat the

market cons stabie characenstcs such

as prediCiable cosl Dase, révenug sireams,
goverﬂme”t incentives or proven tecknology and as

wer returns that without everage would

iert for our shareho

20 gHows us

flex iy in Frzncirg our bus nesses and maragng

casn ficw We beueve hat faiing 10 agdopt this

ive IMEact on businiess
ety and thareholder va.ue over the long term
cur nterest gcayable is fixed

FApa—

Approsimately 80% o
2 net &g ilantly exposes o

and therefore we ar



[
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Group finance review

the currert interast rate voiatitty, We contn

ally
review Anancing arrangements to ersJre inat he/
are compettive and optimised for the reeds of the
Zusiness.

7o ensure cash s managed in ar aale

ngitan a fexible frarce facmy

be drawn down or repaid o mest

Manrier, wWe t
wiich can
immediate business needs

Looking ahead
The Groun has rebounded we
the Cowd-19 pandemic arnd has owperformed

frorm the effects of

expectations. Whiist the current economic cudoox
is one of challerge and uncertaniy, we anticinate
minima. IrEact on our results due 1o the
syenue strezms and cost tase, ard

tiviies. Coupled with the

orediciabie
essent'al rature of our ac
diversitcabon we have built ug across the oL

we are positioned stroncly for these turbuient

ISINESS,

times ahead

We continue to pay paricuiar attertion to the tw.n
chailenges of risng interest rates and su-ging
inflaticn — both in terms of lending ard portfoli
management. These rerds impact ail areas of the
Group's business and are likely (o remain for the
foreseeat.e future, so we remair discighined 'n our
tapproach. continuing o mornitor the
situation carefuliy and taking a prudent aoproach to

Imvestmean

any currert and emerging risks.

We are positive agout the continued opparianity
for growth and continue to believe that the
business is positioned well to take advantage of
future growih cpportunities across its core business
areas. Enargy, lend-ng and hause pulding
operauons are well establshed in the markel an
contnue to make excellent progress wit robust
performances 1N the new financial year. In ine with
cur planned strategy. simce the year end we seld a
large solar farm in Australa for a small profit, with

proceeds being redeployed into rew opporiunities.

Deployment into fibre cortinues to rolt out in line

Wit expeczat:or‘s and the Group has now passed
more th 5C.000 hames by our fibre netwaorks,
achvi t, in our healt~care divis:on rermains
with nearly 40% of anrual sales budget
alreac‘y complieted or reserved across atl sites as at

the end of Septermber

Arnourced within (e aulumn siatement as part of
he 2022 Financea Bill, the UK Government will
enact a 45% windfall levy ("E

ctricity Generator

Levy” or "EGL") cn wholesale energy market
revenues in e of E75/MWh This s expected to
apply to the Grou ,c from 1January 2023 to 31
March 2028 The exact legislation will be pulsi sned

in rmid-December 2022, bu sed on the ntial
release an impact analys has pean performed

as at 30 September 2022, We estmate the impact
to be a drop in valuation of approximately £45m
Fected, which contributed to a

n the share price to 177.0p 10

We expect to generate stireng cperatng returns
from our estabushed dwisions for the coming yea

in addition 1o the amt%opated cutflows for our
construciion chase assats ~he healthcare and
fibre divisions are well intc therr build nhase in Una
with our lorg-ferm strategy and we anticipate
strong returrs over e next five 1o seven years
upon maturity

PS Latham
Director
16 Decermber 2022

s mm\ .
e
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022.

For a suramary of the Group's resilts, refor to the

Group finance review on page 23

Tre drectors nave not re
dividend (2021, £NIil)

The directors of the Company who we-e i1 office
during the year ard up to tre date of signirg the

fnancial staterments were
PS5 Latham

1 Willey

P Barlow

T Arthur (sopomted 1 July 2022)

Refer 1o note 22 v the howes to e fingnacial
slatements

Refer to the Strategic

[N BN Lo

Refer tc¢ the

commended payment &°

Tre Group's onjectives and polices an iinargial ris<
rmanagerrent incuding inforrat on on tne
expoiure of the Group tc credit nsks, lguidity rsxs
Z. Lt the

firancial statemrents The Group's pr:n-c:\pai nsks are

and market risks are s&t oulin note

set oLt in the ctrategic repert or page 16

As germitteg Gy sectior 424c¢ (11 of the Companies

ACt 2006, the greciors have slecied o disclose

informanicn requ.red O be N Tre dirscters’ report
oy Schedule 7 of the ‘Large and Mecium-sized
3 Accourts and Regors)

Regulations 2008, 10 tne strategic report

_ompanies and Groups

on sound etrical values and behavicours is an
ssa Tre Lrubr endeavours (o cornduct it

LSIress wth rtegrty, inan ethical, pre J‘"”Q\Cnaw
nd respoens-bie manrer, treating our enployesas,

rs, cunpiiers and partners with courtesy

~ L v e e S

=}
D
&)

and atilties Em:;ulu 3 DETICT TEeCoT e JIsaE

while in the Group's erg oymer:, every efficrt
rMade WL orelal rem N enrL.oyment, gy G

slternative raimng as necessary
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

We fully realise tnat our employees wisn 0 be
informed anc consulted on maters affecting ther
work and to be invalved in problemi-solang affecting

their own areas of interest and responsio ity

The Group s armily committed o & policy of goad
commrurication at gl leves and we aim to establist
a climate whicn corsiantly encourages the open
flow of nformator ard ideas. Presently ths

‘nciudes monthly team triefings at a .ocal level and
the punlication of monthly key performance
-ndica ors covering ouiout, operating costs ano
heaith and safety.

e aesa Tl n

The Group has i place an agreemrent witn Octopus
Investrnents Limited to provide services 1o the

Crous covering operatcnal cverségﬁt,
agrministration, compgany secretanal anc company

accountn

The Board aaop
and corporate go

ed g formal environmen:al, scoial
vernance ("t SGT peley on

30 Septemer 2020 The Groupr
nead to conduc

responsiple to the

ecognises the
tits business, in a manner that 13
nvircnment, wherever possible

A5 a low energy user, the Company has elected Not
{0 disc.oze data onits energy and carbon usage.
Fern Traaing Limited is the only Company in the
Croup that meeats the reporting cnteng and

therefgre no information 12 provided for the Group

as a whole.

The Group's has an Anti-Bribery 2oticy whicn
ntroduced robust procedures to ensure full
compliance witn the Rribery Act 2010 and ta ensure
that the mighest standards of professional ethical
conduct are mamiammed.

In accordance witn the recommendalons of The LK
Corporate Governance Code, the Board naz
considered the arrangements in place 1o encourags
staff of the Group or manager of the Grouo to raise
concerrs, in conidence, with'n their crganisation
anout possible improprieties ir mattars of Anancat
reporing or other matters. It is satisfied that adequate
arrange™ents are in place 1o allow an independant
nvestigation, ard folow-on action where necessary,

to take place within the organisation.

We are comrn'tted to acting ethically and with
mitegrity -noail our business ceal ngs ar
relauonships ard o imolermenting and enforcing
cffective sysiems and controls o ernsure modern
slavery is not taking place anywners i our Own
busmess or :nary of cur supply chains, consistent
with our obligancns under the Modern Slavery ACT
015, We expect the sare high sianaards from alt
of cur contractors, suppliers and otrer pusire

(/1

pariners, As parg of cur CC‘WTr’aCtl-”-C} Orolesses, we

expect our suppliers to comply with the Modem
Slavery Act 2015,

onsible for
2 financial statements in
d regulation.

The directors are respo
Annual Report and t

yreparing the

accordance with appll ble law 3

Campany law reguires the directors to prepare
financ al staternents for each financ.al year. Ur-der

thiat law the directors have prepared the Grouo ana
Company financial statements in accordance with
Urited Kingdom Generaily Accepted Azcounting
Practice {(United Kingdom Accountirg Standards,
comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reportinc
Standard applicable in the UK and Repdlhc
Ireland”. and applicable lawi. Urder company law
the directors must not approve the financial

sratements unless they are satished that they give a
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

trus and far view of the state o

and Comoany for that pericd. In preparing the
financiat statements, the direcicrs are regu reg o

rable accounting pcl cies and then apgiy

« state whether apphcable United Kingoomr
Accourting Standards, comprizing RS 102, have
beer foilowed. sukect 1o any material cepariures
disc:osed and explaned in tre inancial
statements;

that

» make judgements and accounting esti

are reasonable ard prudent, and

» prepare the financial staterrente on the gomng
CONCen Cass Uniess it s inapproorate o
presurne

tnat the Groun and Cormpany wit

continue N busness.

ble for zafeguarding
o] Company and nence
for takirg reasonatle stegs for the prevent er and

detectior of fraud a~d other irregularities

The directors are resporsible for <eeping adeguate
aceountng records that are suffic.ent © snow and
explair the Group and Cormpany’s SaCLons an
discinse with regsonabie accuracy at any time the
frnancial gositior of tre Group and Comrpary and
enable them to ensJre trat the financial statements

comply with t~e Companies Act 2006,

The directors orzible for the mantenance

mMigary's website Legislation

o
o

rs of the Group
and Company and of the profit cr logs of the Grouo

As perm tted oy the Articles of Asscciaticn, the
directors have the penent of an indeminity whick is
Wfying third-party noemnity provision as
defined o
The ndemmily was in force throughcut the last

hrancial year and s currently 10 force

N the case of each direcior .~ office &t tre date the
a

as the arector s aware, there 5 no relevant
audt niformation of whch the Group and

Cormpary's a.ditars are unaware, and

« they bave taken all t-e steps that they ought
1o have 1zken as a direcior in order to mMake
thermzsetves aware of any relevant audit

nformaticn and fo estaniisn that the Group and

Compary's ausitors are aware o that informat.er,

This confirmaton is giver and smauld be interpretes
in accordance with the prowswns of section £18 of

tne Comparies ACt 200

[REE)

Er-

& Young LLE naving peen appomnted in 2022,

Rave ndicated er wingress [ oe reapporied

far another term and will he progosed for re-

appo ntment i accordarce with secton 2485 of tre

Comparies Act 2306,

The Diractors rezort was aporoved by the Board of
T ™

Directors on 16 Decamber 2027 ara sgned oriits

Cenalf Dy

PS Latham
Zirecior

Le Dacerepar 2[:22

secton 234 of the Compar es Act 2006,




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinion
We beleve that the gudit eviderce we have
obtained is suficient and acproprate to provide a

We have awdited the finaricial staternents of Fern
Trading Limited {'the Farent Company’} ard 1its

subsidianes {tne ‘Group’ for the vear ended 30 basis for our cpinicn,
June 2022 whicn comprise e Groun Staternent o
Comprehensive incorme, tre Group and Farent Conclusions relating to going concern

Company 3atance Sheet, the Group Staterment of

In aud'tng the firanc'al statements, we have
Casn Flows the Group and Parent Skarement of conciudog that the directors’ use of the going
Charges n Equity and the ralateg netes 110 25, concer bazs of accouqtirig in the preparation of
nciuding a surnmary of significant accounting

policies The financal reporting frarmmework that has

peer apolied in ther preparaticon 1z appacabie law

trie financial statements 1s appropriate.

Baseo on the work we have performad, we fave

o tidentif.ed any matenat uncertainties relating to
and Un ted Kmqr*om Accounting Standards oy ' = k

includirg FRS 102 "The Finarcia. Reporang
Standard acgicabie nthe U< and Republs of

=nts or conditions thas, mcividua\ty or collectively,
miay cast significant douost on the Group and Parent
Compary's ability 1© contnue a3 a goirg concern

Ireland” (Uﬁm“d ngdorn Gereraly Acceptes
for a perod of twe e rmontks from wasn the
cel

Accounting Pract )
financai staterrents are authonsed for .ssue.

In our opinion, the financal statermnents

Our responsibibties and the resporsk ites of
= give 3 true and far view of the Group's and of the tre drectors with resoect to gong concern
Peren: Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 ani are descrnbed in the relevan: sections of this
of the Group's profit for the year then ended; report However, becacse rot all future events or

Ad uons can be prec\czed, this statemient s not a
guarantes as to e Group's a0itly [0 conlinue as
going cencerr

e rave peen properly prepared 1n accordance with
United Kirgdorm Generally Accepted Accounting
Fracuce; and

» have been prepared In accordance with i Othey information

rec aal=) of i s Act 2008 i
equirements of the Comganes Act 2006 The otner INformation comprises the :nformation

. . . nciuded in the annual report, other than the
Basis for opinion : o
financ.al staterents and cur auditer's report

! ‘sialel . el o) LA . -~ . .
We conducted our audit.n accordance with trereon The directors are resporsiols for the other
Internanional Standards on Auditing (L4 {I5As (UK nformation contained within the annual report
and applicabie law. Cur responsibilities urder those

. - L t e [ +
starcards are further descriced in the Auditar's Cur opinion on the financial statements does rot

cover the other informaton ard, except to the
exten: otherwise explicitly stated n this repart, we

responsipiltes for the audt of the finarcial

staternents section of our report We are
do not express any form of assurance conclusion

trerecn

mdependent of the Groug in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant 1o aur audit of
the financial staements in the UK, nclucing the Our responsibiity is to reas the otner nformation
FRC's Zthical Standard. and we have fulfilled our toand in doing so. consider whether tre other
cther ethical responsibilites in accordance with
these reguirements

rforrnation s matenally inconsistent with tne
financial staternents or cur knowledge obtained in

A ‘Ky




ik
F

<
I
Py
z
=
A
m

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

rse of the audit or ctherwize agpaars o be

matenaily rmisstated. IF we ideniy such rmater'al

a{;paremt raterial mMissiaterments,

nconsictencies or
e are required ¢ de

erm ne whether this gives rize
entin the
staternents tremiselves. if, based on tne work we
that there i< a
matena rrisstaterent or the other information, we

o a maternal misstate Anancial

have performed, we corc.ude

are required o report thaf fact

We have nothing to reportin this regard

Opinions on other matters presoribed
by the Companies Act 2006

noour oprion, based on the work undosaken in

re course of the audit

« the nformation given in tne Strategic report ana

o

ne Crrectors’ report for the financial year for

which the finarcial staternents are prepared s

cons sient with the financ al statements, ard

» the Strategic repost and Directors

Creport nave
bear prepared ir accordarce wth apiecanle

legal requirermernts

Matters on which we gre required to
repori by excoption

in tne hgnt of tre knowiedyge and understarading ©
tre Gro.p and the Parert Compary and its

enyironment obtained in the course of tne audit,

we have rat identfed matenal misstatemenrts in

tne Siraicgic report or [2rectors report.

We nave r.othing to report in respect of the

following matiers i relal o to which the
anies ACT 2

ir our SEIrion

Comi CO6 requre

LU S report T

foe certain disccidres of Direciors rermmuncration
: specifed by law are not made, or

i we have not received sl the informacion and
SACIArAlOnNs we reguire o our audii

! Responsibiitiss of direciors

As exﬁla5ried Tore fully ir the Qirectors

responsibiides statement set out N page: 29 ara
2 the L

of the finarcial

Directors are resoonsible for the precaratiorn

staterments and for nemng satshes

t~at trey give a true anrd fair view, and for such

tarnat control as the B 5 determine s
e o~ of fnancia.
SEatemprr‘ “hat ﬂ*w

msctaterrent, whetrer due 1o frawd o error

In creparing the finandial starements. e Directors

are resporsinle for ¢

Parert Compary's ab ity 10 continge as a gong

-
oolicanle, maters related

to going concern ans usirg the going concern
basiz of accountng unless the Directors enher
Portend wo iguidate 1o Group or the Paren:
Caormrpany o 10 Lease operatonrs, or have nNo
reatistic atterratve bul to do so
i Auditor's rmpwm%%&;%% 5 for the audit
i oof the Financial statemants
Crar ojectives are 1o obtar reasonable ance
D oabout whether the nancal staternenis 23 a whde
are free fromr matenal misstaterreant, whetirer due

to frauc or errar, ard 1o issue an audior's report

Potratinciudes “ah.e assararce s

zhgh level o

SUr oL rnion, Reasc

GF B35L7

ance, but s

s Not g guarantee that

an audit condus 2wtk 15As (UKD

witl aavays deract srer it

ras f mdiv duatly or e the

D
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as to what extent the
audit was considered capable of
detecting irregularities, including
frawd

Irrequiarities, inciud ng fraud. are instarces of non-

compliance with laws and regulations, We desgn
procedurez Irlifie weith Qur respors bilties, cutlined
aud. The

g a materia misstatenent due o

sove, W detect irreguiarnes, ncluding f
nsx of not detectn
fr&ud iz higher than the -isk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as frawd may involve deuberate
concealment by, for exarrole, forgery or inentioral
tio crn The
exfent o wnich our procegure: are canable of
fraud is detaiied
nsioility for the

ntion and getection of fraud rests witn bhoth
Tl“o se charged with governarce of the entity ard

misrepresenta S, or through celius:
dgetecting irreguiarities, inciucing
below. riowever, the primary resg

Yiariagemernrt

Cur approach was as “ollows

= We obtamed an Lnderstanding of the legal and
regulatory frameworks that ars
Group and determined that the most sigraficant

mework (FRS

apnlicable 1o the

are those that relate to reoorting fra
102 and the Compar=es Act 2006)
= We understoo Lirnited iz
CoMping with those framewor<s oy making
those crarged with

for legal

d now Fern Trading |

enguiriez of management,

governance ana those responsit

m

and compl ance gprocedures as (G any fraud risk
frarmnework within the en
a format fraud risk assessmeant 1s completed We

tity, including whetner

corroborated our engu r s through review of the

following documeniation or performance of the
tollowing crocedures

¢ abtanng an Lnde rng of enuty-leve.

s and cons.dering the influence of the

=

contro

control environiment;

« obtainng an understanding of poidies anc

procedures 'n piace regarcing compliance
with aws anc reguiations, including now
compt ance with such policies is meonitore
a1d enforced: obtanirg an undarstanding of
raanagement’s process for ident fy:ing ang
respond ng W fraud ns<s, including pregrams
and controls establisned (o address risks
icensified, or otherwise prevent, deter and
adetect fraud, and how sen.or rranagement

monitcrs those programe and conirols,

» review of poard meating rainutes in the ceriod

and up to date of signing.

otibility <f the Group's
g to rmatena. misstatement,
ceur by holding a

eam which included:

fnarcial <tateren

inciiding now fraud mi gi’t
discussion with n the auddit

« dentifzation of related parties,

« understand.ng the Groug's business, the

conrol ervirconmeni: and assessing the inherent

at the significant

account level noluding discussions with,
anding of

risk for re.evant assertions

managerneant 1o gain an unders
those areas of tne inancial statements which
were susceptinie wo fraud, as identified by

mManagement; and

e consicered the controls that the Group has
established (o address rsks wentihed by
the entity Or that otnerwise seck to orevent,
deter or detect frauvd including ganing an
understanding of the antity leve: controls and

pohcies that the Group applies.

Based on this understandng
audit proce
with such aws

we desgried our
ures to wentify non-complance
and regulatons Our procedures
involved testing cf journal entres througn

journa. analytics teols, with focus on manual

jue

Liais ahu et
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals

meeting our defined risk criteria based on our

understanding of the business; tested accounting

estimates for evidence of management bias,
enguiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
reguiations that could aflect the financial
statements; and inspecting correspondence,
if any. with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of cur responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

P sy B N g e
TLL LAY Ll e TERGREY

This report is mage sclely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company's members those matters we are
required to state (o them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body. for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

[ &% 7\ (L

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalfl of Ernst & Young LLP. Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 Decernber 2022




35 \ |
4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 230 JUb 22
Group profit and ioss account for the voar ended 30 Junse 2022
{restated}
2022 2021
o Mt £000 - £'000
ﬁ;m;v;r,,“m g L PR e Saperseaees ; 711830 :_;25;302 e
Caost of saieg {410,883) f221 ?77)
Grossprofit ) 300947 204025
Adrmiristrative exsenses (258 251)
Operating proﬁtl(loss} 2 S 42, 696 o
Otner ircome 1 3,550
neome from other fixed asset mvestments 5,249
Share of cperating proft i joint vonture -
Profit on dispasal of subsicianes and joint venture 3] 29,533 28,568
Otner irrarest recenab o and sirvilar income 3! 130 857
nterest payacle and siilar charges & (33,554) {36,067}
Prohtl(loss) before taxatlon o L47,604A MMW{T?266%}W
[EY or oo ﬁ*ffw)ss} 7 {16,294} (3,349}
profoss forthepranciatyerr e ow
Attributable to Fern 37,932 (27.005}
Minority interest (6 622) {4,007
S U000 G0

All resuits relate to continung actvbes, Nete 26 details the prior per

od acjusiments

Group statement of comprehensive income for the vear ended 340 June 2028

{restated)
2022 2021
o £000 £000
Prafit/(loss) for the financial year 31,310 (51012)
Other comprehenswe income e
Moverrents I casn flow hedges 77,985 44983
Foregn excharge qa\ru(o< G IElranslatio : . 18, 561 N (333)
Other comprehenswe income for the year R : '96 546 44 6’:0
Totalcornprehenswe income for the year T _ o »127,8"_59 w::w 13 638
Attributable to
e Owners of the parent 134,478 17645
¢ Non-controlling interests (6,622) i

127,856

13638
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Group balance sheetl as 2t 30 June 2022

{restated)
2022 2021
Mete £000 £ OOO
Fmedassets - e A e R AR R AR RSN et 3 3 5 e .
Irtangble assets 2] 552,708 576,739
Tangible asseis 9 1,893,430 1581682
frvestments 0 35,452 11000
T 2486590 2169471
Current assets " -
Stocks 12 184,479 94711
Debtos {ncluding £138m (202] 13 623,161 598002
cue gfter maore than one year
Cash at b 301 k ar d i haned 11 256 415 172,478
""" - " 1,064,055 865191
Creditors amounts falilng due wathm one year ‘ I ;1/- N (256 152} t20-2:-0-59)
Net current assets S - 807 903 o 6’3‘,-1-312
Fotal assets less current l[ablhtzes 7 3 25;1“493 S F’ 832,553
Credltors amounts - falling due after more than one year 15 o (992 425) {G03,239)
Prowslons forllab;iltles o S ”,f' o (82, 626) (41,37é}
Netassets 2219448 1887242
Capitat and reserves
Calieq Lp snare Camta e 161,662 149676
Share preraiurr: account 364,882 173,118
Merger reserve 1,635,569 14440,257
Cash flow hedge reserve 63,006 {14.979}
(2 770) 15360453
Total shareholders fu,ﬁ,&,s 7777777 Z 222 349 1,884,12i
P\Of - orutrf‘t ng interasts T ‘ 2, 901) 3721
Capitat employed U e T g 019,448 1887.842

MNcoe 28 details tre orior penoad adjusiments.

Trese consolicate Arizrcial statements on pages 2% 52 were aopreves by the Board cof directors on
P
i

PS Latham
Cirector

Registered rumper 12601638
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Company balance sheet as 5t 30 June 2022

2022 2021
Mote £'000 £000

Fixed asset:
Investmei:s 10 2,539,978 2,116,366
2,539,978 2116366

turrent assets

Debrors 1% 39,888 50,283
Cask at banx and in hand 11 6,422 1.523
Creditars: amounts falling due withinoneyear 14 (449)  (22924)
Metcurrentassets 45861 28982

Net assets ' 2585839 2145348
Capital and reserves

Called up share capital .8 161,662 142676
Share prem-ur account 364,882 173,118
Merger reserye 1,986,457 1,791,145
count 72,838 21,409
S 2585839 145348

Total assets less current liabilities

Frofr ang loss ¢

Total sharehelders’ funds

The Company has elected 1o take tne exempticon under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not ©
nresant tie Company profit and loss account Tne profit for the finarcal period dealt with ir the finzncial
statements of the Company was £236,742,000 (2021 loss of £157,504,000}

These Arancial slaterments on pages 35 to 92 were aporoved Sy the Board of directors on 16 Decembper 2022
and are signed on tharr behalf by:

PS Latham
Director
Regstered number 12601636
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Grroup statement of changes Iy eguity for the vear ended 30 June 2022

Caltled up Share
share premium
capital account

E'000 £000

Merger Cash flow Profit Total
reserve hedge and loss

reserve account holders’

(restated) {restated) funds

{restated)
£000 £'0D0 £°000 E'000

Nen-

share- controlling

interest

£'000

Capital
employed
{restated}

E000

Eﬁ b o ctrnt 138435 - 1535569 63,837} 41185) 1668982 9570 1678552
Proroenca - - - 3875 13,802 17703 - 17703
adjusimeants inois
EM‘Z o, 138475 - 1535563 (55,962 (273560 LE86,685 9570 1496255
020 ros
- - - - 127.008) [27,008) 14.007) {31.012)
Cranges ir rnarke:
vale of caskh fow - - - 44983 - 44982 - 44983
monges redated;
- - 1233 1323) - (333)
- - - 44,983 (223 44650 - 44 /50
- - 44383 (27338} 17645 4007 13.628
- - - - 183% 183. (1842} 11
- - {195.312; - 165,312 - - -
11685 173,118 - - - 184,803 - 184 803
(444) - - - (6,399) 6,843 - {6,843)
302" restarad) 143 676 1735118 1440257 (14,9791 136,045 1.884,121 3721 1887842
Balance as at
£ July 2021 [restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (14,979} 136,049 1884, 121 3,721 1,887,842
Profit for the
financial year - - - - 37,932 37,932 (6,622} 31,310
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 77,585 - 77,985 - 77,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
foss on retranslation - - — - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries
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Called up Share Merger Cash flow Protit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capitat account reserve account hotders’ interest
funds
E£'000 £'000 £000 E'000 E'000 E'000 E'000 £000
Other
comprehensive - - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/{expense) for
the year
Total comprehensive
incomeflexpense) for - - - 77,985 56,453 134,478 (6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger - - - -
reserve - - 195,312 {195,312)
Sharesissuedduring 3 11986 191,764 - - - 203750 - 203,750
the year
Balance as at ;
30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 (2,770) 2,222,349 2,901} 2,219,448

Note 26 details the prior nenod ad ustments.

Company statement of changes in eguity for the yvear ended 30 June 2022

Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
£000 £000 E'000 £000 E£°000
::;la\ o m e - - S
Ceacfortre hraccal yesr - - U aszsea uszsoa
Unusztior of merger aserys - - [195.212) 195,212 -
Toral cr;"'*ur,-rre*-errwal‘;-rfr:r mrcri;r':tr: ) - - t195312} V 37&08 o ~l;~7~55:4
Sares isiaed dunag The year 150.120 173118 1986457 - 2309695
Snares cancelaed our g tho vear [444] - - (6,395) 16,843}
Balanceasat30June2021 149,676 175118 1791145 31409 2145348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 (195,312} -
Total comprehensive income - T T Taes32 0 araze 236781
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 — - 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - — - - -
Balance asat30 June 2022 161,662 364882 1086457 72,838 2,565839
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Group statement of cash flows for the veor ended 30 Juns 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Proofht/tloss) for the finsncial year atrbutabie to the cwniers of the parent

Adjustments for:

Tax or profit/(loss)

I=terast recevable and sirmnidar income

Irierest payabe and other s miilar charges

Profit on d spesat of subsidiznes and jort veniure
Income frorm  oint venture

Ircorme frem fired assel invesiments
Arorisation and Tpsrment of intangicle hxed assels
Depraciation of tangible Txeo assels

MNon-cash stafi costs

Movermernie or denvatives and foregn exchange
Ircrease in slock

(increaseif/dacrease in ocbiors
Ircresse/(decradss: in oned torg

Men contrethng interesis

Tax rece ved/(paic)

Cash flows from investing activities
Furcnase of subsidiary undertakings (net of cash goguired)
Sale of subsidiary undertaangs and joint venture
wrenase of targibie assets
Furcnase of argible aszets
Purcnase of nrliisted Investments
Sate of unlisied myesiments

Irterest received

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from firancing

Hepayrrents of irarcing
Proceeds {rom share issue
Carcelation of shares

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash anc casn ecuivalerts at tre beginnirg of the year

Note 2022
. E000

37,932

7 16,294
6 {130)

6 33,554
# (29,532)
(5,249)
£ 45,762
3 101,802

3,040
(18,044}
{19.829)
31,022
(173,956)
14 {6,622)

41,897

(52,377}
101,778

(322,446)

(7.222)

(124,203)
1C 105,000
) 130

| 299340

201,715

(32,319)

(32,013)
15 203,750

5 —_

341,137

83,694

Exchange gaims or cash and cash equivalens

243

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear

1 256,415

25,853

21 172,478

{rostated)
2021

oo
{27,005)

8,545
(997}
36,068
(28.568!
(1,755}
(449
37,704
84,697
8.875
{19,788
(5,701}
249.3/4
6871
(4.007)

(221.987)
34503
(110,457

(875)

{29,617
20,133
G597

(35.552)
(212,676}
184,355

16,399}

{34577}

(1.75%)
341917

(306.22€)

(70,268}

206,638

367
172,478

Note 26 deta ls ths pric” period adjustnerts,
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information
Fern Trading Limited ['the Company ] 1s a private compary lreited by shares and incorporated on 14 May
2020 Tne cornpany is sorniciled i Englans, the Unred Kingzomr and reg'siered uncer company number

12601636 The address of the registerad office 15 at 6tn Floor, 33 Haborn, Lonaon, Engiand, ECEN ZHT

Etztement of compliance

]

The Croup and :ngividual franciai staterments of fern Tradirg Limited kave been pr'c—:pared ncomplance
with United Kingdom Accodnt ng Standards, ncluding Financizl Reportng Standard 102, 'The Finarcial
ard applicable in the Jnited Kingdom and the Republic of treland {(FR5 1027 2nd the

Com paries Act 2056

Reporting Stand

Basis of prepoaration of Anancial statements

The fingnc al staterments Fave been pregared cn a going corcern Basis, under the hestonca: cost convention,
as mocified by the recogaition of certan Arargal aszets and hab'lties measurad at fair value, and
accordance with me Compan es Act 2006 ard applucable accounting standares ir tne Unite d ingdom. The

princioa accouning colicies, whichk ~ave been applied consistently throLgrout the year, are set ol celow.

The consclidaed fi zl staternerts include the results of all subsidiaries owned by Fern Tracing Lirnitec
as listed ir note 29 of the annual Ananc at statements. Cerlain cormpanies of these subsidiaries, which are
fisted in note 29, have taken tne exerapticn from ar audit for the year ended 20 June 2022 permitted oy
seciion 4794 of Compaﬂees Act 2006 In order to alow these sups-diaries (o take the audit exermpuion, the
parent company has given a statutory guarantee, ir lire witn tection 479C of Companies Act 2008, of all
the outstanding net la ilries as at 30 June 2022

{3oing concern

The Grous's ang the Campany's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect ts future
develepment, per‘crmarce and positior are set out the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 14 Tne financial

postion of the Group. ts cash flows. hg u\d\ty pcsiton ard borrowing facilities are described ir the financia

raview Gn pages 23 1o 27 Tre prncipal rsks of the Group are set out on pages 16 o 19,

The Trectors perform ar annual going concern review that considers the Grouo's ability to mest its
frarcial okligations as they fall due, for a penoc of at least twelve months after the date that the financiat
statements nave been signed

»r

Due to the chalenging market conditions maragement have performed an assessment o determing
whetner there are any matenal unceraintes ansing that co

Groun t¢ continue as a going concern. Mo significant issues have veen nated and as a congequence, the

<Id cast significant doubt on the abiuty of the

diractors beseve tnat the Group s well placed to manage its business nisks successfully despite the current

uncertain ecoromic cutlook
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Statement of accounting policies

I reachng this conclusior the Directors have reviewed the inancial irY‘paCt of tne uncertainty on ihe
Croun's baance sneet, profit ard loss and cash fiows with specific consid ion given o the foliowing.

A reverse stress test was perfarmed on the bhase case forecast to asceriain what scenaras would resultin

risks to the Groups liguidty pos ion The test showed even in an unikey scenaro f a sigrificant reducucn
of revenue of 46%, the Group s age o sustain its current sperational costs ana meet all babdities as they {all
due for at least & year from the date of signing ese fingncial statements winen utlising the avalable
facilites whin the Group.

0 hzs a numper of financing facilities that contain covenants requr Ng the Grous to meintain
specified fnanca reties and comply with certair cther inanc al covenants. Tnese Francial covenants are
tested at least quarterly. and. at the date of this report, the Group is ir comoliarce with all its firancial
covenarts Stress tests o regsonzbly plausible scenarnos such as a S.gﬂiﬁcaﬂt recucuon n EBITDA of 84%
over tme nave been used to assess the covenant requirements for the at least the next twelve mentns ard

all covenarts have been forecast to be met even urde” the stress test scenario, in the gong concerr prrod
AL 30 Jure 2022 the Croup hac avalasl M and nesdroorm ava lakble of £441n inciucimg a

5

revclwnq racht fac’ -‘t; of £220m. Zebt of £88rm is due i¢ mature in less than one year, with the remainder
Grouns facilites, repaymen: dates and undrawn amoun:s are

set outin Note 16 Loans and Sorrow-‘ngs

Key accourtng Judgement and estrrmates have been made win Consiceral.on giver: o the current
SCCNOMIC Uik, Key estimates nclude lcan recoverability, valuat o of work in pregre

FRCOMIrIsSionng Srovisic ™, imparrment oF gocdwall and mvestrnents, business combinacons ard nedge
account ng. Detail: out on pages 50 to 51
Based on the above gszessment of current economic condidions anc the mosct or the Group's financis

postion, liguidity and ficanca) covenants, the direciors nave concluded that the Group and Company has
adeguate resources to conbinue ir cperaticnal edstence for the next 12 menihs Thus, they cortinue 1o

adopt the gorg concem £ass of accountng in preparing the anndat Gnancis! statemants

§x@mg&xwwg for guslifying entities undeor FRS 102

FRS 102 aliows a gualitying ety certain disc.osure exempnons, subject o certain conditons, which have
beer: complied with, -ncluding nctifcaton of, and no shiection to, the use of exe:’ﬁpt:ons oy the Compary's
shareholders

- o~

~e Company has talken acvantage of the “cllowing exe ucns
Y 3 2] mp

repanrg a staterrent of cask flows, or tne tasis trat it1s a quasfving entity a~d t-e conzoidaed

P
staleTen: of cash flows. 1Inclugea in thece firanc al staterner s, incuded the Company's cash fows,

regiired unaer FRS 102 paregrapre 11,25 o 11 484 and
rscl cat

© provigeg N he corscl

h aaloll:0 ot eMment persorre Compensation, as recuived by FRS 102
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Statement of accounting policies

Basis of consolidation
The corsclidated financal staterments include the results of Fern Trading Lirnited and ail s subsidiary
undertakings made up to the same accounting date Al intra-group naarces, trarsachons, Income and
expenses are elim.nated in full on conscldation The resuiis of subsdiary unidertakirgs acquired or disposed
of dunng the pericc are included or excluded frorn the -ncome staternent from the effective date of

P

)

acgu sihor or dizposal

All underiakings over which the Group exercises contm!, heing the power to govern tnie firanciot and
35
-

opr—:ratir‘.g poiicies so as to obtain benefits from ther activities, are corsclidated as subsidiary undertak ngs

Where a subsidiary has different accounting polcies o the Group, adjustmeants are made © those
subsid ary finarcial staternenis 10 apely the Group's accountng policies when preparing the consalidated
firarcia: staterments.

Where the Group has writter: a put cotion Gver shares neic by a ﬁor‘:—curétro-mg Interest, the Group
derecogrises the non-controllng interest and irstzad recogrised “ont'ngent deferred consideration Latility

w thin other payables for Ine estimated amount akely 1o be paid 1o the non-cont-oling interest on exerc.se

O_ CT

of these opticns The residua. amount, represerting t!" ifference between any consideration paid/payable
rid the non-controwng inierest's share of net assels, is recognised as gooawill. Movemernts in the

a
estimated lability after imitial ~ecognition are recogrised as goodwill

Forelogn currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Groug financal statemerts are presented in cound ster/ng and rounded to thousands,

The Cornpany's funciional and presentation currency 1s pound sterling and rounded @ thousands

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the functional currency Lsing the soot exchange rates at
the dates o° the transactions. At each period end foreign currency monetary iterrs are translated using the
closing rate. Mon-monetary items measured at histor.cal cost are trarslated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction and non-monetary items measured at far value are measured using the exchange
rate when fair vaiue was determined Foreign exchange gamns ang osses resui’;‘mg from the settement of
transactions ard from the trarslation at pencd-end exchangs rates of moretary aszets and [ shilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in tne proft and loss account.

All fore gn excranige gains and losses are ntec in the prodt and loss account within ‘administrative
expenses,

iii. Translation
The tradirg resuits of Group ungertzkings are transiated imte pounds sterling al the average exchange rates

for the year The assets and iiabilities of overseas undertakings, inciuding goodwill ard fair value adjusiments

arising on acauisition, are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the year-end. Exchange adjustmeants
arising from the retranslation of open'ng ret investmen®s ard from he translation of the profts or .osses
at average rates are recogrised in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and allocated to non-control'ng interest

= ao'“'o'ar‘ e

oL s
N toaiithe]
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Statement of accounting policies

Turnover

The Group operates a number of classes of buziness. Revenue is gervea by the folowing.
- Energy

Turnoyer from the cale of electncty generated by solar farms, wird gereraling assets, resarve power

plarts and niormass and landfili sites 15 recogr
generated, Revenue from long-term government backed offtake agreements, such as tne Rerewable

o o s aooruais bacis in the perod nowhich <Lis

Chugaton Cerufication "ROC™ scheme are accrued i tne penod nowhich It relates to. Turmnover rom the

sate of ferthiser by biormass and landfill busimesses is recognised o prysical dispah

Turrover = recogrised when the sign
passad 1o the buyer (on leg:
prokatle trat the economic benefits assoc

At nsks and rewards o ownership of relivement properties have

Nl the arnownt of revenue ca~ e reccgrised reliably, and it

iz recognised st the fair value of the consderation recewves for healthcars services provided in the norma

o the gate the servige 15

coarse of Dusness, and iz shown net of VAT, Turrover ‘s recognised base
provded

o Le~dng

Turacver represerts arfraTCerment (ees at

G onterest on loans provaed fo customers, ret of any valu
K‘

an
acded tax. Loan nerast « recogrised or an accrua basis n.ne weth contractLal ierms of the loan

ayrecrent Arrargerment fess are spread over ne tfe of the oarn Lo which Iney relate.

» Fibre

Turncver 1s recognisec at e far velue of tre corsideatiorn receved for inerner connecivity and related

I'T servces provided ntre rormal course of pusiness, and s shown ret of VAT Tur-over is recognised

based on e date tne service 15 proviced

« House bulding

‘

N

Sl o
e o

Turnacver is recognises on .egal complationr of the

froem NOUSIngG assccianon contrachs ic grizes by referance 0 the valve 07 wore —ompieed as a

proporuon of the totar contract value.

Empiloves benefits

The Group provices a range of penefits 1o “LE bonus arrargertents, pad rosday

arrangements and defned conrbution

i. Short-term henefits

Shors- terrm penefits inciugirg hoilcay cay and other simler ror-rondlacy berefis, are recogn seo a8 ar

exoense .~ INe penod nwh o7 the service § rece ves

i. Defined contribution pension plan

Adefred connbutor plar s a pensior plar under wr on the Creus pays Fred contrbutans ine a
separats ertity Urce the contrbutions nave been paid the Group Nas no furiher paymert ob‘.wgam-m

The controulons are recogrised a8 am experse wher they are aus Arrounis net ga d are showr

from the Group in -ndepe! JD’”H,

ed with the fransaction vl flow to the entity rArnove!

¢ property, .and and commercat spaces Turnover
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Statement of accounting policies

ii. Share-based payments

Casnh-settled share-based payrmenis are measured at farr value at the balance sheet date. The -Gfoup
ecognises a liability at the balance sheet date based on these fair values, taking into account the esumated
numiber of units that wiil actually vest and the current proportion of the vesting peroc

Charges in thie value of this labiity are recogrusec in the income statement
The Group has no eguity-settled arrancements

Finance cosis

Finarce costs harged to the profit ard loss account over the term of the debt using the effeciive
nterest metho J s that the amount charged 5 at a constant rate on the carrying armrount 1ssue costs are
intially recogr'sed as a reducton in the proceeds of the astociated capital instrument and released to the
orofit and loss account over the term of the cebt.

Lurrent and defarred tax
Tzx 18 recogrised in tre staterment of income and retained earmings. except tnat a change atintutacle to an
e of INCome and experze reccgnized as other comorehersive Incom:e or to an item recoenised airectly

equty s alse recognised in oLher cc;prr"preher*f'\'& ncorne or directly in eguity respectively

The current ncome iax cnarge 15 caculated on the bawz of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substaritively enacted oy the balarce sheet date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates income

Deferred balances ars recognised ir resceact of all tming differences that have erigirated but not reversec
by the Baance sheet oate, except that,

» The recognition of deferred tax assets 1= imited to the exient that it s probable that they wil be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax Labilities or other future taxable profits, and

» Any deferrec tax halances are reversed If and when all conditions for retairing assecatea 1ax atlowances
nave been mel

O

eferred tax balances are not recogrised in respect of permanen: differences except in resgect of business
eferred tax is recognised on the differences belween the fair values of assers acquired

combinations, when d
and the future tax deductons avallable for them and tre differerces oetween the fair values of uabilities
acquired and the amount that will be assesced for tax, Deferred 1ax s determined wsing tax rates and laws
that have teen enacted or suostantively enzcted by the balance sheet date

Business combinati and goodwill
Business combirations are accounted for by apply ng the purchase method.

The cost f a business combination is the fzir value of the consideration given, laniities nourred or
assumred and tre eguity instruments issued plus the costs directly atributanie to the business comibination.
Where control is acnieved It stages tne cost is the consideration at the date of each transacton.

On acquisition of a bus ness, far values are attributed to the Wentifab.e assets, lamilibes and contingent

liabilimies Lnless the fair value cannot oe measured reliably, in which case the value s incorporated as
goodwil. Where the fa'r value of contingent lab-lites cannot be reliably measured they are dsclosed
on the sarne basis as other contingent liabilities.

suu i

Linsare



Statement of accounting policies

Goodwil recognisea tepreserts the excess of tre fa rvalus and direcriv atnibutable costs of the purchase
- .

consideration over tre fair valuas 1o the Srous's interest i~ the ident

onungent lizbhilites acquired

On acauistonr cash-generatrg unis (CGUJ'E] that are expecied W benefit frorm
tne comairat.on

Goodv-w[[ g arnortised over s axpected uzeful ife whch .z deterrmnes basea or the estirated lifespan of
ne assets acauired Where the Group s unabile to make 3 reiable estimate of useiullife. goodwili s

amorused over a period not excecding en years Goodwill 1s rev:

ewed and assessed for irmpairment

indicators or an annual basic and any smpairment i< criarged o the profit ana loss

Tangible Hyed assats

Tangible fixed ascets are stated at cost less deorec’aton. Depreciation 1s provided at rates caculated o wrie
off the cost of ﬁx@-d assers, less thar estinrated residual value, over tharr expected useful bves Deprecauor
cormmences from the date ar asset s orought into service Land and assers 17 the course of construction
are ~ot depreciated. The estimatea usefu: bves are as folows

b,
i
—
=
T
T
)]

Assets 11 the zourse of construction are staten at ¢ ated until they are

;\ﬂ

avanlabie for use

sidual value
re amerded prossectively to

Where faciors, such as techrnowogcar advancerent o0 changes 1N market grce, ncicate that re

or useful Ife have cnanged, the resioual vaiue, useful bife or desrecatior rate
tfthe

—r

reflact the new crrcurnstances. The assets ara reyiowen for impa rme s indicate that the

carrying amaount may be imgared

Gains and losses on disposals are determinen by companng the procesds with Ine carrying amcun: and are

recogmsed within orofit or ioss

non anag accurulates impar ment .csses

od, 1o allocate he denrecanle armounrt of tne assetz

Z o 10 years

N adrrristy

/e eXperses

Developrment r ghts relate to plan~ ng corsent to oud & soiar farm 2ns s wind “arm acadred on acquistion.
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Statement of accounting policies

Where factors, sach as changes in market price. indicate that residual value or useful ife have changed, the
residual value, useful ife or arnortisation rate are amended prespacively 1o reflect the new ciriumstances
The assets are reviewed for impairment if the accve factors rdicate that the carry' ng amoart may
bempares

Logsas
tincept on the Group astesses agreements tnat ransier the nght o

e3
wnether tne arrargemert iz, or contamns, & iease based on tne s ubau—r ce of t~e arrangement and whethier
the lease snould be classified a3 either a finance lease or an operanrng lease

Leases of assets that ransfer substaﬂ?ialév all the rsks and rewards ncdentsal o ownersh'o are cl;ss.ﬁed as

:'D
—
0
D

arce leaces are cacitaised at ibe commencement of the lease at the fair vaiu
clated ovor the shorter of the lease term and tre estimated useful Ufe of tne asset

[T
]
— U

or impairment at each reporting date

Leases that do not transfer all the ris<s and rewards of ownersnip are casaified as operaiing leases
Payrments ander operating 'eases are charged 1o the profit ang 1088 account on a siraight-une nasis over the

period of the lease

Arg

[t

Investmenis
The Comgpany hiolds investments in a subsichary at cost less accumulated impairmrent losses. if ar

imparrmert (05515 s,bﬁemen“y reversed, the carrying amourt of the invesiment 15 increased (o the revisea
estimare of Its recoverable amount, but only (@ the extert that the reviced carryirg amount does not exceed
the carrying amourt that would nave been determined had no impairment ©ss been recogrised in prier
peaads Areversal of an smpairmens loss s recognised i the preft and ioss account,

Cash

Cas~ includes casn rnand and deposits repayable on dernand Restricted cash cepresents cash for which
the Group does not have rmrmadiate and oirect access or for which regulatory or legal reguirements restrict
the use of tre cash

Stocks

Raw materia.s spare parts and consumables are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Where
necessary. @ provisior is made for obsolete, slow-maoving and defective stoc<. Cost s determined on the
first-in, first-out {(FIFO) method.

Fael stocks (MBM and Iitter} are valued on an average Ccost hasis over one to two months and provision for
unusai.e litter 1s reviewed montnly and appled to o-site stack

Fuel stock of straw has been valued at the historical cost per onne of straw. A prevision for unusable straw
s identi9ed on an ndividual stack basis and 1s reviewed monthly, Stocks are used on g arstin, first cut
"FFO) Lasis by age of straw.

Stocks of ash at Fibrophos are valued at the lower of cost and net reglisable va ue to the Group.

Stocks of property deve:opment work in progress (WP are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost compr.ses direct materals and, where appiicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that
nave been ncurred in brinaing the stocks to therr present locat ons ano cendition




Statement of accounting policies

At eack: reportimg datz, an assessment is made for impairment Any excess of the carrying amount of
stocks cver 115 estirnated selling price l@ss costs 1o complete and sellis recognised a5 ar irr parment 1oss
through the profr and loss account Reversals of imnairmert (Gsses are al30 1ecogrised in tre profit and

loss acco..nt,

Avcrued ncoms

Accrued income on bans s calculated at the rate of interest set Gut i the Can contracts. Energy income |

&

arccrued over tne period In whic it has besn generated

Deferrad income

Gefarred income is recognised in accordance witn the terrs set cutin the contact, Deferred income s

SUNT e the pencd to wnic it relates

The Group nas chosen o edopt Sectors 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of francal instrurients

Bazic financial assets, including ra

are iritially

recogrised at tranzaction price, untess the arangemert consttu a rrancing ransaction, where the

Transaction s measwec at the present value of the future receots discourted at 2 marke!t rate of interest

Such assels are subseqoently carr’ed at amoriisea cost wiirg e e¥ectys imierest metrod

At tre end of each reporting perco Anancial assets measured at &

evidence of imparment | an asset s mparea the mparmert lo

amowunt ard tre crese

rate. Tre irmgarment 1035 15 recogrised in proft or loss

Other financial assets, nouding iNvestimeris N eguity instruments which are not subswianes, assotates or

Wt transactior prce. Such assels are

jo rtventures, are initally measured at far valle, which sni

<

supseguenty carred at far vall nd trie cnanges n far val £ recognsed in profit or loss, except trat
M

irvestments 1 eguity instruments that are actl puclicly raded ang woose farr values cannot oe measwureg

ret ably are measures at costiess mparmen:

scogn sed when (g the conraciua, r ghis to the cash flows frorm the asset expire or
stantiacy al. the nisks and rewards of the ownerzh p of the astet ave trarsferred to
antrol of the assel has beer transferred 1o anot~er parly wio nas the oractica ao'lity

astel 1o an urrelzted vrira pacty without imipcs ng adaitiora. rést-cucns

Fimancial liabilities
Bz

Arigrcial isoilit s, oy

Follmepy . o
rom fellow Sroun Ccomoanes

and prefererce zhares, awa it constiues a

Francing transaction, wroere the deot ritrament s maasored at 7 e present valde of tne ‘uiure rece pts

diszouned gt a marel rate of iterese
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Debt insirumernts are subsequeantly carned at amoertized Cost using tne effectve interest rate method. Fees
paid or tre estaglishmert of 0an facilities are reccgnised as trgnsaction coss of the ican 1o e extant that
s provapie trat some or ali of the facility will be arawn down. |1 thes case, the fee is aeferred until the
draw-dowr oocars To the extenrt there 1s no ev'dence that 1 s probable that some or all of tne facility will

agrawn down, the fee s capitaliced as a cre-gaymeat for kQuidity services ana amaort

ne sed gver the geriod
of

the facility to which it elates.

Trade payables are obligatons (¢ pay for goods or services that nave been acquired ir the ordinary course
of Susiness from suppliers Accounis cayabie are ciassified as current lab-itties if payment 1s gue w.thin one
year oriess. If not, they are presertzd as non-current bagillites. Trace payables are recognised mitiatly at

tranzacton crice and suseqguently measured at amornsed cost using the effecuve interest method.
Financial liabitties are derecognised when tne lisbiity is extinguisned, that 13 when the contractual obligaton

5 discharged, cancelled o expires.

Provisions

Provisiors are made where an evernt nas taken place that gives the Group & leg

l o corstructve oRlig dt%Of]

8]

that provaly requires setilernent by a transfer of economic oeneft, and a reliable ecumate car be made of
the arrount of the opligation.

Provisicrs are cnarged as an expenss 1o the profit ana loss accaurt in the year that the Group becomes
aware ¢ the obligation, and are measured at tha best est mate at the balance sheet date
required to settle the abligation, ta<ing inte account reievan: risks and uncertainties.

Hedaing

The Group acphes negge accounting for transactons enterad into to mamge thia cash flow excosares of
slo} rrc.mr“gg Interest rate swaps are beld to manage the irterest rate exposures anc are des'gnated az cach
fiow heages of floating rate borrowings Changes in the far values f;‘ aerivatives designated as cash fiow
hedges, ard which are effective, are recognisec directly in eguiy Any ineffectiveness in the hegging
relatonship (being the excess of the cumudiative chanige in fair vawe of the hedging instrument since
incepton of tne hedqge over the cumulative cranges i thie farr value of the hedged e since inception of
the hedgel iz recogn sed in tha profit and loss,

The gam or lass recogn’sed in other ¢ "orr“prc—mer sive Income s reclassified to tre profit and Loss in

accordance witn the cach flows of the hegged iterr Hedge accountlrg is discontirued wnen the nedging
Instrument exp:res, no longer meets the nedgng criteria. the ‘crecast transact o~ is no longer wighly
probable, the nedged debt instrument s derecognised or e hedg:ng irstrurnent is terminate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares issued by tne Groug are recogrized in equity at the value of the proceeds rece ved, with the
excess over nominal value be'ng credited tc snare premium

Hon-controliing interasis

Non-controling irterests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiabla net assels
at the date of acousiion.

PRIt e
A3

e nn I

&\mus%kﬂ\v FahoiabLa it d i
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Hey sccounting judgoments and estimates
The preparation of inancial staterments r complarae with “RS 164 regu
accounting estirnates. It also reguires marage™ert o exercize | d] ernentin applying the

accounting polcies Estmates and judgemerts are continually evaluaied ana are nased or hisionca
experierce and other factors, Inc'uding expeciations of future events that a2 belaved to pe reascnable

undear the crcumstances. The key estimates and j.dgemerts in préganng thesa financia, staements are

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estlmate)
L >ans and advances to custamers, incl =dmg associated accrued incorme balances, are reviewsd ‘or

:
=
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lows on a case by case pasis. As U“ s eztimate reles o a certair

numier of assumptions aboul future

vents which rmay affer from actuz. outcomes, ir“ctu- Ing the
horrower's ability to repay interest ana capital dusin future penods, this gwves rise 1o judgernent

whether there 1s a shortfall between tne carrying value and the fair vaae of the debror baance

Management note that provisions agarnist ioans and advances is a Lrntca estirmate and have therefere

performed sens vt 51 on the provision Tre results of tre sensitivity aratysis conciude trat a ¢nange

of +/- one per cent ir the armount proviced against the esimated ba.ance at risk weuald rave resulted in

/

CZ &m essimore axperditure being chargec 1o fne income statement cuning the pencd See note 15 ‘or tha
carrying armount of the debtors and provisicns at 30 June 2022

ii. Value of property development work in progress ('WIP'} (estimate}
Property developmen

IR s reviewed for impairmeant on a per.oaic bass 11 congdenng the reed for a
provision, maragorrent dotermine ther pest estimate of tne reccverab ¢ value Management engage an
expert exierna vadsr o provide key assurnptions apout future events wrnick roay differ from actual
outcomes, inc.uding property vawations, rate ¢f sales ard develcpment coss

Trese esumates give rse w0 judgement as o whather there 15 & shorifall between the carrying value and the
far value of the natance as at the 30 June 2022 Post year end, maragement have reviewed ihe

sumphions used 1o ceterming tne vaue of properly deve ooment WI- and have observed 1o changeas in
cA

Derfcrmaﬂce that would impact the vawahor as gt the 30 June 2022 Sce note 12 for the carying &mount
0 the property devalopmenrt WIE

ii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)
Tre Group owns two energy generating suabaidiaries in Ausiralia which rave entered into purchase orice
agreements (PPA's) in 2019 ard 2021 The FPAs inciude a contract for offerences "CTFD" whereby the

suosiclanes pavirece've ameounis from the cusiomer baseos on 78 differences cetween a fxed el

i)

and “nie attuzl price for elecnaity sold 16 "he Australa be diectors oeileve tne Ccorvacl s

cutside tre scope of FRES 102 se

cuorn 12 as itis for the waie of a non-fnanaal iter and tre C0 s tyoical for

cuch arrangements Therefore itis being actowrtes for under FRS 102 secvor 23 ac a revenue cortracthwitr

varlan.e consiseralon, Hire CONTraCt Lo T vaiue

iv. Business combinations (estimate)
e cost of a business combination s the farr value of the consideraten given, fiae. L

dolus the
costs directly attrbutaole to the susinest comibs nation Far vaide of these corrbimatons s a key estimae

CCLIT

and more ceta’ s are orovided cn oages 45 1o 46
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v. Decommissicning provision {estimate)}

The provision for decommissioning costs 1s measured at ranagement's best esurnate of tne present vaiue
of the expenditure required tc zettie the future chligation to return land on whicn the e ooearatioral wind

and solar farms, to s ongnal conditon The level of the provisions is defermined t© a siarficant degree by
the esurmation of ‘uture dismantling ard restoration costs. 2s well as tre nming of dismantiament

Wind Farms (estimate);
Marageent Acte that dacomrrissioning orovis ©ns 1S a critical estimate and have therefore performed
sensitivity analysis The results of the sersitivity analysi nclude that a change of +/- are per cent in the

discount rate woud have resuted in £2 1 incresse/dec

l/'\
)
rD O
=3

ase In the provisior. See note 17 for the provis.on
recogrised at 30 June 2022, Management utlise external experuse to provide an esimated cost to
disrmantle and nave usea a discount rate of 2% 1o reflect the tme N value of morey and the risks specific
to the coliganor.

Australian solar farms {judgement);

The Group i reéqured to restore the leazed orermises of the solar farm o their ongina: conaiton at the end
of the tease term A provision was previously recognised, howeyer in the currert year this judgemernt ras
peen reassassed and management believe the t2ssor may wish 1o eitner take ttle of the assets for ether
continued use or to reause value through sedirg the assets and as such do not bal eve that ar outflow 13
oronable to settle this restoration obiligation,

UK Solar (estimate):

Dunng the year, a third party performedc an assessment of the base cost of the decommissicring of the
Croups UK soiar farrms. The findings have resuited in material change n the cost estmate and therefore a
orovisior: has been recogrised for the first tirme on some sites. Tre impact has resulted in a provision bemrg
raised for £18rr 1o the balance sheet decommussoning liapility and fixed assets. As at 30 June 2022 there is
A0 impact on the profit and oss. Sites not affected are acaressed telow

UK and French Solar {judgment):

Management beligve that given the nature of these particular assels, the lessor may wish to either take title
of the assets for either continued use or to realise value through selling the assets ard as sucr do not
pelieve that an cutflow is probable to seftle this restoration obligation Management will continue o montor
the situation at each kalance cheet date.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)

The vaiue of goodwill held oy the Group and investrnerts in subsidiary dndertakings held by the Comrpany
is reviewed annually for impairment. The recoverabiiity of these ba.ances is considered with reference o the
present value of the estimated future casn fiows. These calculations use cash fiow project.ons which extend
forward foracast business parformance togetner with assumptions surrcunding the expected bfe of the
azset, externaly prepared forecasts and vawwations, ard ary adjLstments reguired o the discount rate to take

account of business risk The estimated present valle of these future cash flows is sensitive 1o e discount
rate and growth rate used in the calculation, el of which require management's judgement. Testng of the
carryirg vaue has been performed during the year, which has involved several scenarios being modelled
Based on this testing and the resulting impairment recognised on nvestments, managemant believes there
is sufficient headroom o support the value of goodwill and investrments in subsidiary entities.

Managerment note that imparment of goadw Il and investments is 3 critical estimate and have therefore
performed sersitvity analysis on the provision, The resalts of the senativity anatysis corciude that a charnge
of +/- one per cent in the arnount provided against the estimated balance at riek would have resulted in
£5.49m less/more expenaiture being charged to the income statement during the period. See note 8 for
the carrying armount of the goodwil and nvestments at 30 June 2022
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Analysis of turnover by category

2022
| E000
42,404
ver and wine 365,958
223,526
Healtricare operatrens’ 45,978
Horae bulading 25,034
Finre operat ong 8,930

Erergy operations - solar, reser e pos

Eriargy ooerebons - Biomass ana lardii

179,820
141,826
42,266
4,828
425,302

‘InCluded i ncorne com lealti-care oporgnor S L7 4rm (20321 E11.270) relating o ne sale of rotirerrent
and £28 S (2021 31 Imiin relaton o services 1erderad

Analysis of turnover by geography

2022

Errope 84,433
23,486
711,830

Rest of waord

605,911

village uriz,

2021
£000
384,799
31803
8610
425307

Other income

2022
£000

-

B ™

dara icdrance proceeds 3,550
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This is stated after charging/icreditingi

(restated)
2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Amorteation of imtanginle assets irole 8; 37,849 37704
Imparrment of intangible aszets (e 8) 7,913 -
Lepreciation of tangible assets inote 9) 101,802 84.697
Additors’ remuneraticn - Compary and the Group's corsolidated

financia: statemerts 45 146
Aadrors remmuneration — aud't of Company’s s.bs Ganes 819 1134
Aaditors remuneraton - nor-audit services 246 513
Asdiars remuneration - tax complliance sanvaines 482 672
Ditterence on foreign exchange 7.772 4,402
Operatrg lease rentals 13,783 7,502

Note 2€ details the prior period ad

2022 2021

£'000 £000
Vianes and salaries - " gs,432 41383
Social secunty costs 7,041 3809
Other pension onss 1,676
S ' 46,868

The Group provides g defired contribution schemes for its empioyees In the UK. The amourt recognised as
an experse for the defined contrbutionr scheme 1s shown in the (abe above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022 2021
o ] Number ’ ~ Number
Soducion ) o 1,032 699
Aarrinistration 631 348
Dureciors 3

1666

The Compary had one employes ather than Directors dunng tne perioc ended 30 June 2022 (2021 none).
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2022
£000

FhEaboxa €31 ¥ AT TIRORN R I T it e e L T i O LT T e Rt L L R e e AL XY EEEEI L AR P g, AR, K
Emclurments 176 163

2021
sl

Durng the vear no pension contrinutions weare made n recpect of the diectors (2021 none)

The Group has no other key mansgenent (2021 none)

A

A numper of suosiaiaries of tne Group operate g casr-setted LTIP o gualify ng empioyees, whereby

ermployeas rerds in excharge for cash, te amount of woich € delormined by réfersn

valuator of the urdenying subsidhary Tre fair value of tre taplity for th

resor:hg date and at the settiement date Tre ‘ar value s recognised over the vesting per od

& awards made s measurerd at
ihe ancunt

ce o e

expense recognised tares Into acoount e best available estimate of the nurber of unis expected to

vast under the service and parfarrnance conditions wnderlying each award gra~ted

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022
Number of

0,5“ rg o2 t&mr‘dw.p oA ru;ﬁ ) h ) 1,914 751
qrf "‘tf:’j Garing the '\(*r‘ d 1 753 553

Closmg outstandmg balance 7 - 3 678 314

2022
Number of
award<

164O h(‘r"\
274 757
1914 751

Tre wial charge for the year was £3 133,000 (2021 £1,334,000; ard a: the 20 )
lacility of £2,407.000 incudaed with'r creditors greater tran one year (2021 £1,31

&

Interest receivable and similar income 2022
E’OOQV
130

ure 2022 there was a
740

2021
£o0e )
597

{nterest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021

) ) A ) E'OUD E ODO
‘Mefesroqamk buw.jngj P 32’192 e e e 3A 378 R
Arrorisar or of 1ssae Costs o bank borrowngs 2,597 11063
Preaniloss nd“rvatm_ IPATCIA, NTUrTE s {1,235) 587
o ' - S 33,554 36,068
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a) Analysis of charge in year

JUNE 2022

(restatecd)
2022 2021
£'000 £Q00

Cu r;e m l:ax o vt e s R e £8P -
LK corporation tas charge on orofiviioss) for 1he year (297) 1648
ACHUSTITONtS 1N respect G pros paenodds 3,196 12.860)
Fore G tax Jufﬂ»rr'd 5, 641 -
Ptal CQ rrent tax cnargt,’(( rﬂdm NB 540 o ” (1218;

Deferred tax: -

Onginaticn anc reverszl of iming a.Nerences 6,227 2074
Agiusrenis in respect of pricr penods {3,741) {3,958)
"f ”Mrm@ i Tat rator 5,268 11 491

Total deferred tax ) 7754 9567
Tax charge on prof‘it-l-(l-c;ss) on orainary a“c‘tivitiés‘ 16,294 8,349

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax asses

19% (2021 19/ The differences are expained be.ow:

F T R Rl AL T

Profltl {loss) before tax

Pro H/(D“J b&fur” tax mut U d Ty STaﬁdc’C‘ ’ate
corporaton tax in the UK J 19% (2020 19%})
Effects of
Expenses not deductibie for tax purposes
Other effects

ncorre not taxable for tax purposes
Adlustments in respect of prior pencds
Fﬁﬂcfc of Lhange u" @ ran::,

Total tax charge for the year

sed for the year is higher (2021 nigner than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of

(restated)

2022 2021
£000 £'G00
47,604 (21.170)
9,045 (4.022)
11,723 16,076
{868) 1,022
(8.102) (9,351)
(545) (6,865)
5,041 11489
16,294  g349

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the mamn rate of UK corcoration tax from 19% to

25%, effective 1 Acril 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have be

wrich represents the future corporaton tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date

Mote 2€ detalls the prior penoo adjustments.

en measured ai 25% (2021 25%)
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Software Goodwill Development Tatat

{restated) rights
000 £000 £000

Baconas om0 DAELEACERAPIILYRE Y fA TR LE FFEeAb sk ava iy

Group

Cost IFUU
At 1 July 2021 irestated) 964 726,602 10,216 737,782
Acquired throwgh business 30,042 4,058 34,100

compirations (noe 27)
Additions 2,125 - 1040 3165
Cizposals - (21,118) - (21,118
on - 7,930 - 7,930
At30June2022  zpss 743456 15314 761859

Accumulated amortisation

(33N G ransl:

AL Juy 2021 frestaned, 107 159,902 1.034 161,043
Lisposas - (2462} - (2462}
| oss On transiat on - (132} - {192}
Ireparriraent - 7913 - 7913
Charge ‘or the year 12 37314 523 37845
At 30 June 2022 . ‘1;19 4 o 202,4?5 o 1.557 20415

Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540,981 13,757 557,708
A0 June 2021 {restated) 857 566,700 G182 576,739

. E000

761,859

208,151

T

Tre gain on trarslauca of foreign currency genominated goodwiilis recognised n otier comprehersive

Ty d
recome. Amortisation of gocdwil. is charges to adminiaration costs

Details of the subsidiar.es acgured during the year ended 30 June 2022 can oe faund ir note 27

Durng the year tre group disposed of 2 wna farms in finland, as a result L2 5 of accumulated cooawll
amortsation was recagrised 10 the current yeas and £19 3m of goodwil was realised on the sale. Gainon

sale recognised inthe proft and leoss e relation o this trangaction was E2&m

=

Impairreer: of £7.9m has been recognised on gooawill (2021 rone),

N assets have pean pedaed as secunty for liaoilites at year end (2077 nore

Ncte 26 asta'ls the crior perind adjustments
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g

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total

buildings stations machinery assets construction ({restated)

(restated)

Group £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
o S R R <, R 0 L A RS SRR
AT July 2URT rastaeds 8531 37467 1695437 27288 43,777 2,092,000
Addinors 829 1535 73647 50462 258,005 374480
f;;"?dftmj?n S 1,308 - 51,344 - 57,563 110,315
FXffar value noverrent - - 368 - 3.294 1662
Transfers - st 10566 20236 132.070] -
Dieposals (135] - (?‘\ 95¥] - - (76,08€)
At30June2022 10533 319071 1745911 118,686 310170 2,504,571
Accumulated depreclahon - S S S
Arl Jay 2021 4410 90,059 414,559 1.250 - 510.318
Charge ‘or tne yoar 183 17130 81,141 3348 - 101802
Disooszals - - 1282 (224 - {403}
FA reavemner: - - {776) - - {776)
At 30 June 2022 -4,!-'|93 107,189 494,742 4,417 - 610,94i
Net bo‘)k value e e e e e e e s e e
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
A 20 dure 2021 fre; ate) - 4,221 22/408 1,280,878 25,5958 43,277 1,581,6éé

Included within tangibie assets are capitalised finance costs directly attributable to bringing the assetinto
use. The net carrying amount of assets Feld under finance leases inc.uded in plart, mach nery, fixtures and
fittings s £51, 785,000 (2021 £51, 534,000 ). Inciuded in netwaorx assets is @ provision of £1,023,000 for
obsolete eguipment and development

The Company had no tangible assets at 30 June 2022 (2021 none}

Note 26 detalls the prior penca adjustrments
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10 v

Group

Costand net book value

Unlisted
investments

Fotal

000

AU Juy 2021 11,000 1L.040
Additons 126452 129452
(105,000} 105.000)
At 30 June 2022 S 35,452 35 452
ALZO June 2021 - 1000 11000
Subsidiary

undertakings Total
Company £000 £'000
Cast ikt . [P oo/ e
At 20 Jure 2021 2.311.678 2,311,678
Adoitong 228,300 228,300
Dis r, cals - -
At303June2022 2539978 2,539,978
Accumulated impairments . . )
At 30 Sore 2041 195,312 195,312
Reversal of impairmoenis {195,312) (195,312)
fﬂpa\rm@ﬂm - -
At30June2022 - - -
Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2,539,978
AL30 Sune 20257“ - 2116366 o 2116366
Uetals of relatec undertalengs are showr nnote 29
Unlistea invesiments cormprise the Group's bodirg of the mempers’ capital of Teride LLE & lerdi

business, a~d its sharehoding in Bracker Tragirg

Terido LLFP N

Lrted Fern co—four.dec

e inrerton of conducting a proooruon ¢f it futre race drough the partnerstio Addivan

of unostea nvestments relate to investmenic ang divestrnents .n Te Ao Lo ir line witn Ferm's cash
s

recidrerrents and o outilse surplus funds. Ferr 1as 3 ail charehotd g in Bracken Trazing Lirrited “rarr
trne 1o tirme. Fern's nvestment 1t Bracken Trading Uimiied at 3C June 2022 was SN 30 June 2021 £l
The directers do not consider Tendo L_P or Bracxer Trading Limited 10 e subs dary uncera<ings of Ferm

Trading Limitz
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
18 D
Casnhincludes cash in hand and depacsits repayable on demand

Restricied cash represents cash for whicn the Group does not have immiediate ard direct access ar for

writch regulatory or legal reguirements restrict the use of the cash.
Group
2022 2021
‘ £'000 £'000
195,823 117.141
60,592 55,337
Cash at bank and inhand 256,415 172478
Restricted casn is comprised of £726,000 neld in sscrow and £59.865 000 of cash held in subsidanes with

Di-annual d'srbut-on windows.

The Company had a cast balance of ££.422 000 as at 37 June 2022, none of wihich was restrcted (2021

Group
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
;\Sﬂ stoek T B o 1,538 219%
Fuel cpare nars and consumat.es 26,023 18,593
Property development 'WiP 156,918 73923
o o o T o ‘-184 479.“ T 947£l )

The amount of stocks recognised as an expense dunrg the year was £120,412.00C (2021, £41,212,000)

Included in the fuel, spare parts and consurnables stock value 12 a provision of £390,000 for unusable fuel
stock (2021 £459.000) Including in property developrnent WIP 1s a provisior of £928,0C0 for warranty anid
site spec o provisions

There has been no imparrment recognsed during the year on stock (2021 none), No inventory has oeen

pledoed as security for lathtias (2021 none

The Comipany rad no stocks at 30 June 2027 (2C21: none).
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) 5 LS

Group Company

(restated)
2022 2021 2022

£'000 feoo . E000

Amounts falling due after one year
| oans and agvanceas o cusiomers 137,662 16,128 -
Amounts falling due within one year
Loans and acvanoes [ cusiomes 223,239 369 384 -
Trade deitors 42,050 16,121 392
Araclnts owea by relaled partes inote #4) - 3,550 32,950
{othar debtors 20,199 24,972 3,843
Corporaicn tax - 6,603 2,527
Dervative financial «strarments note 217 54,409 6469 -
Prepayments and acorued ncome 145,602 154,375 176
7 U gp3ael 598002 39,888

2021
L FoRe

8
12,751
5008

32,616

50,383

Loans and aovances t

(o]

3
o
8}
1y
i
i

Prepayments and accrued ncome are siatec net of provisio:

—
prd
Q
2
M
=
il
vl
=
0
(al
i
4]
-
9]
M
@]
O
i}
Q)
B
i)
o)
[
]
=
5]
Q
=
4]
O
o
s
«)
Y
[
el
=
73
[N
[
o
L0
e
5
i8]
(72 ]

Note 26 details trhe pror perod adjustments

custormers are stated net of provis ons ©f £13 874000 (2021 £18.189.0C0)
3 s 3

. 35 the cutstarding balarces are arsecured
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Group Company

(restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021

‘ o 2000 E"OOO i 2000 e 200
Trade Creditors 58,004 23,390 76 16
Ot er taxatinn and social secur ty 8,161 - - -~
Ol er wredilon 24,362 55,806 — -
Anounts due o relatad partes (note 24) - - - 20,203

Arnance eanes (o 16) 2,428 2147 - -

Derivat ve financiat instrurrents (note 21) - 143 - -
Accrua 5 80 L-E‘feffbd ncorme 75,465 72087 373 2 70“

256 152 202.059 449 22 924

Group
2022 2021

Amounts falllng due between one and flve years EDOO B £'000
Eark loans ard overdrafts rete 16) 383,070 247297
finance ieases (noe 16] 5.899 6,125
Derivative Franaed insirumrents (nota 21 et -

Otror credizors 5 364 .)415
394 333 258 837

Group
2022 20721
Amounts falimg due after more than ﬁve years ‘ £000 £'000

Bark loans and overdralts (noie 16) 573,416 577235
Finance eases inoe 18] 24,676 24435

Dervative friars

nsTruTents (note 220 - 42 772
598,092 644 502
Total creditors faling due after mare than one year 992,425 903,339

The Compary has no creditors due in greater than one year.
Amounts owed (o related parues are unsacdred, non- nterest bearirg and repayable on demand

Naote 26 details the prior pericd adjustments.




i
Fa
i

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
R A N R

2022 2021
£°000 E OOO
MBnJ’,73Z 47, 786
e Debween one and ve years 383,070 247,297
577 235
1,044,218 T griois

G

Du& Tirnore than five years

Tre Corpany fad no bank loans at 30 June 2027

The bark icans are secured against assats of the Group with each toan as heid by tre susdiary shown helow
3 b

Interest rate 2022 2021
- GO Cagaan N AL, srr¥mia r e vaaemevy geren £ ooo EVOQO
Yiners Enaergy Lien & month SONIA plus 160% 429 138 438,149

Cedar Energy ard Infrastructure Lirnited LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2 00% - -

3 manth FURIBOR pius
1.20%. Fixed rate 1.70%

Elios Energy 3 12% + 6 month EURIBOR 56,079 -
Boomerang Frergy L amited € month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348 295,344

£ 49% lswap rate of 459% +
1.9% margin)

Melton Rerewahte Energy 1% Limited & month SOMNA plus 2.35% 85,718 103,435
Dutacca W Hoigeo PTY Ltd 17% + BBSY 31,614 -

£, £3, _
Flivia Homes | mited 5% + SONIA + 2 5% non 12,306 -
utiisation fee

LLos Energy & 30,946 34,995

Daringuen Poirt Solar Farm Pty Lirnited 114,026 B

e

v

Zosteo Assat Mar rrent L rnited Fixed rate 2 5% 43 -

1,044,218 871918

SONIA regacec LIBOR as the effecive intertark lencing rate system from 1 January 2022 The rate change

Finance leases

-

Tre ‘uture min marr France lease payments are as follows

2022 2021

MOt lator tran ore year 2.428 3,166
Later than one year ano not aler thar five yoars 5,899 6,196
Later ther Ave years 76,461 72,013
Toiz' Qress nayments 84,788 81,375
Less Arnence chargas (51,785) (47.609)

Carrylng amount of the habalnty /53 003 33766

goo0 . EOC

Tre finance leases prirariy reate 1o & leased pulldi~g and hearhcare equipnent Trere are No contngert
rental, renewsl or purchase ophon clauses Rents payacle ncrease by loca, rilaton. Finance leases are
secures aganst the leated sssets

Tre Corpany had no firance leases at 30 Juns 2072,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Decommissioning {restated) (restated)
provision Deferred tax Total

Group £'000 £'000 ~ E'000
At 1 July 2021 20439 20,933 41,372
Mcrease recogrised n profit and toss 21 11495 11,516
Ncrease raccgnised trcugh otrier cormprehersve Incorie - 18,202 18,202

Iparment 16 - 16
Increase recognsed i fixed assets 23656 - 23656
Fecogniscd on sabsiclary aCguisiions - (3.568) (3.568)
Adjustrment in respect of prior years - (5465} (54635)

Unwencing of aiscount 249 - 245
Adjustrent relating 1o changes in accourir g ostirrate (3,373 - (3,373)

Galn on transls

15 - 15
82,620

At 30 June 2022 41,023 41,597

The decomrmissioning provsion is held to cover future obiigations to returr land o which thare are
operational wind, biomass and solar farms, 1o thelr original condition “he amounts are not expected o be
utlised ‘or in excess of 25 years.

The Comparny nad no provis.ens at 30 June 2022

Note 26 getans the prior penod adgustments

B8 oL Lm e Dar DUl L s n

The Grouz and Company have the fol.owing share capital

Group 2022 2021

Allotted, called-up and fully paid £000 £000

1616622011 (2021 1496755256 ) “’ _
N LT ,662 149,676
Ordinary shares of £C 10 each 161.66 '

Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid £'000 £000

1616622 011 (2021 1.436,75525E)
Ordinary snares of £0 10 each

161,662 142,676

During the year the Croup issued 119.36¢,754 (2021 1,501,199 278 ) ordinary shares of L0 10 each for an
aggregate nominal vaiue of £11.887.000 (2021, £253.120,000) Of the shares issued curing the year, tofal
consideration of £203,750,000 (2021 £2,316.6595,000) was paid for the shares, giving rise ¢ a prermum of
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£273.118,0C0) During tne year the Greup purc“rased A (20270 4,444 3233 of its own

Or¢ hrarj ch« 25 of £0.10 each with an aggregate nominal value of il (2021 £444,200) Total consigeration

of £ril (2021 £6,844, 200) was pa:d for the shares, gvirg rise to a prerm‘;m of Tl 12021 E6, 3

Tre Group nas adopted predecessar accounting princpies as 1t was forred as part of a gro

s
reconsiruction, therefore the share capital ard snare premium account are tresteo as if they had a way“

O

ex'sted Moverrents n share capital ansing both before end afler the restructure are reporteg as moverments
inthe Group share cap-tal,

Durng the year the Company 13swed 119, f£0 10 each for an

ge
aggregate normnat value of £11,987,000 (23‘
corsideration of £203 750000 (20215 £2 %
£191,764.000 (2021 EZ 16&.575,0C01 Durin
ordinary shares of £0 10 each with an ac
of Ll (20221 26,844,000) was pa d for

20 OOC Of the share
was paid for the share wfng nsetoa premium of
the year tre Group ourchased 021 4444020} of its own

a
e nomingt velle of fril ’2.)2“4: 3 Towal consideration

il et
L]
3
L(_)
[§]

~r
[
g rise fo g oremum of Sni (2021 £5,3589,200)

There s @ singie class of ordingry snares T rs on the distroution of dvicends and the

repayrmen: of capilal

Cash flow hedge reserve
The casn flow hed r}ﬁ re

hedging arrangements

Merger reserve

The merger resarve anses from the differance between the {ai
values of the subsidianies acau red

K

Tre moverent in rec-corntrcling nterests was a3t ollows

Group
Note 2022 2 21

Group E£'000
AT July 2021 3,721 570
Sale of subs ertarn W aCOLErG

?f b} Lbsig fary Lnd riaxl Qs an [ tHn 27 — (1,842}
of non-cononiling intennst

sral comprebensre wss aitnisutanle to
Tota miprebensre oo rutable (C {6,622) 4007
NON-CENt Gl inerests

AL S Jarae 2027 2, 901) 3721
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As gt 30 Jurie 2022 there were no contngencies acros: the Group or Company

PLT e

Group Company
{restated}

2022 2021 2022

2021

Group E'CO0 £'000 £'000 £:000

R wee wre g e amRERRERESEERSA o v 3 vk ames i B R i e merae T b & R BED RS ok mwen kB f R L f o ot A ‘.

Carrying amount of financial assets

Drabt instrurrenis measured at amaortsed oost

423,150

Messiured at fair vatue through profit and toss - 0,465 -

Yake thmqu utr:( reormprenensve Incorme 54,409 - -

Carrying amount of financial liahilities

Megsured at amorusod

1,126,163 056,384 76

Measured at fair va.ue thraugh otner cemprehensive income - 42772 -

430,556 4,235 17.767

e
Q
o
]
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.
(o
]
ar
o
—
0
il
3
5
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments
The Group's firanciz: risk management secks o min raise the exposdre 12 market ns< credit r sk, Hgud -ty
and cash flow nsk, and energy market risk

a) Market risk

Energy market risk
The energy secior is exoeriencing signiicant turbilence and there s a r sk that forecast .evels of incorme are

not achieved due 1o changes 1in wholesale ene-gy prices, off taxe contracts or government subzidies

Changes in Government polcy, or regulator ntervent.on may resull in reguced imcome strears within the
group due to addit onal levies.

Currency risk

Tre Groun presents its consnlidaten hirancia siaterments in sterling and conclcis buzres:s n a number of
othier currencies. principally furo anc Austrelias doliar Consequently, the Crouo s exposed o foraign
excharge rsx cue to exchange rate movemons, which affect the Groug’s transzcional expenses and tre

Lt
[

rangiaton of earning and net asces of 1ts non-sterling aoerat

Transactional exposures
Trarsactiona. exposures arise from adrinistrat ve and other expense in currencies oirigr thar the Group's

Ff»

ezentational curraray (Sterling) The Group erters in o forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign :

cxcharge swaps o mitigate the exchange rate ris< for certan foreign currency paysbles and receipis. The :

forward currency conracts and swaps are rreasured af fair value, which s determ nea using vaiuation

recnnicues that Ltilise obzervable nputs The key Inputs used I valumg the der vatves are the fonward
excharge rawes for GB2AUD and G387 FUR. Or 20 June 2022 tne fmr vaue of the fore:gn currercy
ity of En 1 2021 E143,200)

conracis was ar assel of i (2020 16,408 000C) and a wat:

Translational exposures
Balance sheet translatonal exposures anse ar consol.dauon on the reranslation of e balanice sneet of

—

rnon-sterling cperat'ons into stering, the Group's presentat.onal currency. The ievel of exposure s reviewed

by management and the poetertnal foreign exchange movemert s wilnm an accepiable leve! of sk anad
therefare, typicaly. the Group's ¢

F1o Not o actively hedge these exposures

Interest rate risk
The Groun has exposure to fluctuations ininerest rates on s Corrowings, Where the Group enters o

DOrroWNgG arrangements with fleaurg rate rterest, a swap arrangement 1s entered ntc 1o Hx a cortion of
the interest i order to mMitigate azairst an increase i nterest rates The sortion of interest o be fredis
a35E558C O 8 Lase by caze basic ManageTent can elect whether 10 hedge accoant for inese

arrangemens on ar individual ransact on kasis and nave elecied 0 apbly Tedge accountng for nterest

y ard mature on the same date
the fal

I excast of five years an

Cuistanding wteresl rate swaps have & matuty

Price risk

The Graug is a 3nort- 1o med.am-term lender o the res dental properyy markel. "o the extent at trere 's
deternioranior in the level of house prees ihat afedis the properr_wes that tne Group's loans are secured
gainst, trere s aris< taat toe Group rray not recaun s full expasare Tr.ss mtigated by the short-term

e lcans anc the conservatve leve. of loar o vaue izt the Group s prepared 1o end at
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Credit risk
Customer credit risk is mitigaied through tha Group's credit control palicies, which are in place 1o ensure
that cur customers have an apprepnate cradit fistary and are maonitored on an ongo ng bass,

c) Liquidity risk
Lguidity risk are managed by ensuring that sufhcient cash s available to fund continuirg and future operations.

Licudity risk anses on nanik .oans in place across the Grouap and s managed through careful monionsg of
coverants and sensible ievels of debt Borrowing ¢ on a long-term basis, whereas our revenue is receved
throughaout the year, as well as interest and redemptons on our short-term loan baok. Cash flow risk s
managed through ongoing cash flow forecasting 1o ensure receipts are sufficient to meet Lalilities as they
fal. due.

4 SRS I P SR I

Al the year end the Group had captal commitrments as foliows

2021
E000

racted for but not provid 347,254 90,156
Urdrawnr faciimes on icans to borrowers 173,600 92,683

AL 30 June the Group had total future minimurr lease oayments under non-cance lable ogeratirg lesses
as follows

2022 2022
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings buildings
. £'000 £'000 FO00 o 5000
Mot iater thar one yoar 8,707 661 B.031 749
Later than one year and not ater than five 31.627 726 30,369 1686
years
Later than five years o h9“5:§mﬁﬂ4 - ‘ 118632 S 9
135,998 1,387 157332 2444

The Groug had no cther off-balance sheet arrangements {2021: none},

Under secticns 3544 and 47%9A ¢f the Companies Act 2006, the parent comoany Fern Trading Jimited has
guaranteed all outstanding liapilities on those cempanies taking the exemplion o wrich the subsidiaries list
on pages 79 1o 90 were subject to at tre 30 June 2022 unul they are sztisfied in full These labilities total
EG15m Such guarantees are enforceable against Fern Trading Limited by any person to whom any such
liabiity is due.

The Comeany Pad no capital or other commiiments at 30 June 2022,




FTEMENTS 36 JUb

O 11 July 2022, Fern Tradirg Developrent ami=a (FTDLUY, a subsiaiary of the Greup, suc\,ess?utly sold
Darlington Zoirt Foldco Pty Limited to Cctopus Ausiralia Master Trust Asmall p

rf
O
=4
m
o]
o
[
f)

000 was made

on the sale

Cn the 1st of Decermnper 2022, the Group acguired nghts fo a £25m credt voucher and the rght fo use
[t

rnobie hcerses from Tror

UK. vig a Strategic Corneciivity Agreement, thus making the first step towards
becorning an rmobile viriual network operawor

24 .

Under FRS 182 23 1A cisclosuras need not be given of transacucns entered nio cetweer two of more
merbers of a Growp, provided tnat any supsiaiary which s a party 1o the trarsacton s wholly owned by
such a mermnper

Curng the year fecs of £77934,000 2021. £61,154 C00; were charged 1o r2 Groug by OCopus
Investrnents Limited, a relates party due t0ts ngmrcant nfluence over tne ertity, Ociopus Investiments
Lirited was « charged lega: and profess: elo!

O s totalling £10,155 (2021 216,000) by t~e Grodp. At the
yvear end, an amount of £5,500 2021 £21%

was outstanding which s inciuded ni rrade creditors.
The Groug is erttied o a proft share as a result of its investment in Terido 0 P a re'ated party due to key
managerrert persernel N comrmon In /82? a share of proft equal 1o £5249.000 (20321 £445.000) 71z

Deen recognised by t.1e Group At the vear erd, trhe Croupg has a7 interest ir tne member's capial o

S35 452 QU0 (2021 £12,000C,000) and accrued income cue of £5,276 000 (2022 £479 000

Tre Group engages in lendi~g activites wh ch inciude balances orovided o relatec pariies Regard ng
Limcorrmor, lears of £63 490 000 (20&;. £1/5,224,000), accrued
rcome of £1%,789,000 (2022 £26,203.0001 and deferred income of

come of £7°66.050 (202
0] were recognised inreaiunn 1o these 1ans

o

ertities with key management persann

101,C0C) were cutstanding
f£594 000 2021

anc Dor. Nng tne year interest o

o

During e year the Group acquired S reserve =r corngpanics from comozanies managed by Octopus

DO ¥
Irvestments Lmied, a related party See note 27 2) for details of the corpanies acguired

Asail 30 June 2022 Eni (2021, £35,950,275) was owes (o the Company oy Bracken Trading Limied, a related
party by key managemen: persornet in common

Cther than tne fransactions dsciosew acove, e Lomoany's other related party transachons were wh g
wholly owned subsdiary rremrbers of tne Groupg.

5 B

Ir the aoian of the direciors, trere 12 o

rert comipary
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

26 0 co e e

a) Group structuring review

We have conductec a review of prior years
review manacement dentfies unamorused gocdwill balan
adjusied tne previous years to reflect the g

“accountng treatment of irtercempany resiructunag In trus
ces N relation © these transactions We have
slermenitation of amortisaton backdated tc wren the relevant

transactions occurred, The accumulated impact for e goofjwﬂé arnarisation in the profit and loss for 2027

was 8 (2020 £5.3m) the movement of 272 7m b restated throughout the 2021 comparative
nurrbers A summanry QF the impact of the correction is provided beiow
Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
Group o £°000 £000 . gonow
Goodwill 585 988 (5,335} 578 653
Retained earnings 41,185 5,335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
- . EDOO £000 £000
602, 711 (8,049} 594,662
Retained earnings (1239200 8.049 (115,871

As part of the revew of the imergroup restructunn
restruciures had becr incorrectly sccounted for ir a sub secuon of the gro

0.

g menrtioned above, managemen: identified one of the
NG further errors were

discoverad in the review. Tre accumulated imoact for goodwill amortisation in the pro‘it and oss for 2021

wa

as £2 5m {2020, £1.3rm), the moverent of £1 2m has bean restated thrc

sughiout the 2021 comparanve

numbers Tris ‘mpact o the 2020 openirg retaned earmings was offset by £2.1m written back against bad

debt experses. Managemeant have corrected the ‘dertfied eror with the following impact.

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)
Group ) £'000 go00  E00O
Goocwill A 583,988 o18n 554805
Retzined earm:ngs 41185 #39 42,084
Debtors 842,549 (2,724) 839,825
Craditors arounts falling dae within one year (232.813) 4596 (232,317}
Fixard assets 1346655 30,512 1.377.167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Group £009 £'000 £'060
ETW“M o "0z (27.963) 574748
Retaired eamindgs (123,520) (321 (124,241)
Debtors 600,726 (2724) 598,002
Credrors' arnounts fallirg due within one year (207.318) 456 {206,822)
Fixed assets 1551170 30,512 1,581,682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment
We have corguciad a review of ail consali
error relatng o 2019 wiren cgeferred tax adjustments were entered as a consoldation entry and had

tax per subsidiary account and have ensured that tne
relevant balances are correct. The error was posted al a consoldated level orly anc has now been correcled:

waion entries st subsechicrs o the groun We have dertfhied an

subsequently not been reversed. We have checked e

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)

Group o i ) i ‘ E‘OQG o £000 ‘ £'000
Rerained sarmings 41,185 (4,764) 36421
Credtors amnurts faling dus with = cne year (232 813 4764 (228,045}
Trie has & krocx effect inta June 2021, the restated balances are a3 follows

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2021 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated}

E‘ODO

E£'000

Hatamed earrirgs 123920) 4764 {128,684)
Creddors amolets aling guse wilh e one yeasr {207,318) 4,764 (202,554}

In prepanng the tax computations for 2022, the Grouc's lax advisors have noticed an avericoked
SISUMISUST Ir preyvious years tax consoudat o calouatons Wiihin the grevicusly unreccgnized deferred tax
assels Felo with In the grouo sone were avalabie on a consotidaed evel to offset the Groug's deferred tax
Lak:dity. Or aninaaidual compary basis the deferred tax in previous yeass had peen correctiy recogrised A
part of these deferred assets are ir relation 1o cash “low hedges hele w thin the groun which are accounen
forwith r otrer comprehernsive income. Tre accur-diated wrpact for the tax charge in tne profit and loss
for 2022 was £15m (2020: £15 2} the movemert of 200k has been restated throughout the 2021

COMparaudye mur ners

A srmary of the impac! arrecion s orovided below

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group £°000 £000 £'000
Retaned 2arrngs 41,185 115,299] 25,886
ash ‘low hedge reserve 63,837 (2,875} 59,962

[eferred tax provisions (36,484} 12174 117,310)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) {restated)
Group £'000
Cash fliow Fedne recene 14,973
Deferred tax provisons (23533)
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)
Group £'000 £'000 L E'OOO
Retaned earrings Taniess T Tuzsesy 2735
Gooowl H83988 {34,527} 549,471
Debors 842,548 (2,724) 835825
Fixeo asscts 1,346,655 30,512 1.377.167
Dieferred tax prosvis ons (36,484 19174 (17,310}
Cash flow nedoe reserve 63857 {3.875) 59,562
Cred-iors armcunts falling due wirhin one year {232 813} 5,259 (227554}
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) {restated)}
Group ) o £'000 E£'000
Retared eaings (12,129) (136,049}
Goochv 602,711 {36,011) 566,70C
Deotors 600,726 (2.724) 598.002
lxea assets 1,551,170 30,512 1581682
Cefarrad tax grovisions {38.145) 17,212 (20,933)
Cash flow nedge reserve 17.098 {2,119 14,979
Creditors amounts faliing dug witbin ore yoar {207,318} 5,259 (232,05%)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
e N

a) Reserve Power acquisition

2 July 2021, the Greup acquired 9 rezerve power oles through the purchase of 100X of the sr

for consideration of £18

Tre fc%lrw:ng tanles surmmarnise the coniaeration paid oy the Group, 102 far vaue of the assels acquired

nd the batilines assumed at the acguisiuon date.

Consideration

ORI SERER REEIEREORYDONEER AU R bbb i aar o e s R IR T

Canh

... E000

Total con:'.lderatlon -
Ueta Iz of the fair value oF trie nct assets acquired and goodwiil arsing are as 'olows
Book value Adjustments Fair value

EOOU £000

S PEESES L ARE ANttt 4 3 drtrme wEe @ v %o xia can o4 a ¢ nuc 6w SRR SIE @ ous ghxeme yxeuiegngusnn B I

bredt asscts 80,788 (26,553
Trade and other receivatnes 294 -
Prepayments 635 -

soh and cash equivalents 7858 -
rade and othoer croaitors (2,206) -
Lovans (58 816) -
Nt-at- -a;sets acqulred- S ) S 28,553 (28553)

G ﬂ(vumlt

Total cons:deratnon

EOOO
52 23‘:
294
635
7858
(2,208]
[58.?16} ]

Gocdwill resuiting from the busiress compiraticn was il

The consoldated statement of o prﬂr erisve rcorne for the year snctuces £45 803000 reverue ard a

proft after tax of E686 000 inresn fthe acguis 100
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Doveryard Limited acquisition

On 22 Cctober 2021, the Group acauirea Doveryard Limited anc its sugsidiary througn the purchasze of
00% of the share capital “2r consideration of £13,414,000

The following tables surmmarise the consideration pad by the Group. the farr value of assets acqured and

habilities assurnea at the acgu sition date.

Consideration ‘ ‘ e eree e oo S5 est s 0 s
Cash 12,377

Directly attributabie costs

Total consideration 13,414
Detalis ©f the fair valie of the net assets acquirad and goodwill arising are as follows

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

£000 £000 £000

Fixed assets 569 - 566

Trade and other recewables 52 - 52

Prepayments and accrued income 193 - 183

Trade and other crecitors (467} - (467}

Net assets acquired

~

Total consideration

Goodwil resulting from the busiress cormbination was £13.067.000 and has ar estimated useful bfe of 25
years, refiecting the lifespar of the assets acauired

The consolidated statement of comprahersive income for the year includes £l of revenue and a loss
pefore tax of £123 000 in respect of this acau'sition.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

¢) Dulacca acquisition

On 27 August 2028, the Group acguired Dolacca WF Holdoo PTY Lid arg its three subsiciaries thros

purchase of 100% of the share capial for consigeraron of 6115,6801006‘.

Treg clliowing tables sumrranss the considerat:en paid ny the Group, the “air value of the assets acguirad,
and tne laoites assume at ne acqjiéit:(m data A list of the entities acqured inciu der‘ i~ note 29

Consnderat;on AUD'0G0  Exchange Rate E'OOO
Directly atfricurabie costs 1126 1.8904 595
Total conslderatnon o - o 218,683 o - 11.;." 680

Detadls of the fair value of the net assets acguirec and intangiole arizing are as foliows

|
o

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments
values value values

L AUD'000 AUD'000 AUD'000 £000 E'000
o és\:e's . e 157633 e 107653 56937 SRR
Trade and other recernahles 10,131 - 10,131 5,357 -
Casr ana cash equivaents 103,072 - 103,072 54525 -
fatesy nd deferea ncome 10,354 - 10,552) (5,795} -
ﬁet assets acquirecim I w209,88:|-w WM—MAZAOS,884 111026 0 -

.r’*lmqwti

Total consnderatlon

Fair
value
£'000

56937
5,357
54525

(5.793)

111,026

Intarigibles resulting from the asset purcrase was £4.654, 000 and has ar estimated use’ul e of 30 years,

refiectirig the lfespar of the assets acquirec
The consol dates staterment of comprehensive ncome for the year inciudes fnil of reverue and a lo
tax of £227.000 in respect of this acquisit.on,

i
S
e
e et
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 January 2021, the Group acguired Zesteo Asset Marngernent Limited a groject solirces for rocftop
solar, through e purchase of 100% of the share capital for consideration of £4 765,000,

The following tables summarise the consideration paid by the Group, the fair value of assets acquired, anr
liabiities assumed at the acguisition date

Consideration
Cash

Deferred consiceration -

Cirectly attributaole costs 1,093
Total consideration 4,765

Details of the fair valle of the ret assets acou red and goodwill arisirg are as follows:

Book Adjustments
values
I £000 ... E900 .
AR . e e -
“rade and ciner credigrs (574) -
Trade and oter recevables 400 -
Cash and cash eguvalents 1019 -

(46) -

Other ioans

Net assets acquired

Total consideration 4,765

Goodwill resulting from the business combinaticn was £3,810,000 and has an estmated useful life of 10
years, reflect.ng the estirnated lfespan of the assets acqured

The consolidated statement of comorehersive income for the year includes £198.000 of revenue and a loss
sefore tax of £494,000 in respect of this acguisition,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e} Elivia Homes acquisition :

D 23 May 2022, the Groug acguirea elviz Holdings Umited and its subdiciaries, through the purchase of 3
LO0% of the share capual for consideration of £21,682,0C0. ;
Trie following taoles surimarse the consideration paid oy the Groue, the 'z r value of assets acquired, and
laiiities assumed at the acquss > A list of tre entues acquired are ncluded ir note 29, {

Consideration ) £000

LI x| SENENSY Sha ks s, ST Bl o 4 P Bhbeba (% FYRE R bmwcnn. L2 0 % WK Alia.. ... OMRRSWELikeams ¥ TF VAR s B LYo PRI R O N Rt

Cach B 30,999 ’
685 :

31684 l

Cetans of the fair vaiue of the net asse's acgured 2na goodwiil arsng are as “GHows

Book Adjustments Fair
values value

b tdannnn CRPR RAC waee 74 Shmmmne Lt %A% e LAY 3UARD Shixsce s

69,939 - £9,939
Irade and other debios 2,609 : 2,603 ;
SE enurEens 11602 - 11.603 ‘
o INcorae (420) - 142Q0)
Frovisians {93C} - (930)
Deferred tax 6,000 (1400 460
rc'“"u* (094 3 - (69 454)
Total consideratioh ‘ - ~ - ‘ 31 684 h

Trade ar [l oth;r .

Goodwl 7esuling from tne business comoat on was £1,551
vears, ref.ecting trie bfespan of the assets aCqu ran ’
Th vearircwdes reverue of £25 G34,200 and a
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
S8 oo i T T e T e

Our reported results are prepared in aceodarce witn United Kirgdom Accounting Srandares, irciusing
Financ'al Reporting Standa-d 102, as detaled in the Finarcial Statements gtarting on page 35 of 172 Annuat
Report Ir measuring our perfcrmarce, the finanaial measuras that we use nclude those that nave beer
derwed from our reported results i order 1o elminate factors that distort year-cn year comparsons Trese
are considered non-GAAP firarcial measures

Net debt

We provide ner cestin acditon 1o cash and gross debt as a way of assessng our overall cash positicon and it
s cormputed as fol.ows

2022
Note £006

et EACE, L B AREY PRt eln wmEmEpewte vaws geressrhgeseercpsse ol s

o G h e

Bark LJ rs ana b/ﬁ'rnjrdf‘” 16 1,044,218 871918

5,364 -

1,045,582 871,918

(236 415} (172 478)

Netdebt o 793,167 699,440




i
o4

2 37.849 37704
Irnparrnent ¢ qitangble assels a3 7,913 -
101,802 84,657 :
Irrerect payabla and sirniiar expenses 5] 33,554 36,067 :
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 {

1

EBITDA

Earnirgs before irterest, tax, depreciaton and amaorusationr {("EBT DAY s calcuated by agiusting proit after

tax far interest, tax, depreciatio” ang armnortsaton, 17 additior (o income and expenses that do rot reae 1

the day 1o aay coeraticrs of ne Group We previde EBITDA in addition to prof: after tax as 7 alows us to i

assess our perfcimance withoul the effects of finarcing and capta. expenditures :
re following table details the adjustments made 1o the reported result

frestated)

2022 2021 i

£'000 £000

Profit/{loss) for the financial year 31310 (31.012)

AGG |

Arncrisat.on of mtangible assets

o

Depreciatior of tangble

Lrceptonal itams 1105 B

;
Tax 7 16,294 8,549
Less ;
Ircarne Frorre orrer freo aseot wvostnents {5249 {449 :
Srare of operating proftin joint ver tire - (1755] :

Pront o gisoosal of subsidiancs (79,532) (28.,568) i
Interest recewabie and sire lar noorme [§) {1200 597)

EBITDA ' - 194,916 104,036

Nate 26 detals the pricr pericd adjustiments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
G

Details ¢f the supsiciary undertakings are 23 fol-ows

Country of Class of Principal
___incorporation shares Holding activity

Soiar ey Holdig Limites™ UK Ordinary 100%  Holding company

Adarrda Soar SPV 1 Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Agrisol-2 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Al Networks Limiteg™ UK Ordirary 100% Holding company
Allpoints Sibre Limitec®™ UK Ordirary 100% ;\'rl;rgurﬁ‘t;\%ork
Aucrencarrcch Energy Limiteg? LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Aaguhing Land Campany Lired®™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Aveniue Solar Farm Limited” LK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Banbury Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batsolare 5 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batsclare 7 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Beatley Erergy Lrmited™ LUK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
Beightor Erergy Limited” UK Ordinary i00% Dormant company
Bainneun wWind Farm Ltd” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bellhouss Enerqgy Limited” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Birch Bstate Solar Lirntea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Blaby Solar Farm Lirmeed™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
BNRGIOW Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bolam Erergy Limited"™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Boomerang Energy Limited UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Boreds Energy Limized™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Bratton Flernirg Limted™ UK COrdinary 100% Energy generation
Breck Selar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
E:.;\T;(;OO/H solar sevetopments Hoicings WK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Erynr Gdyn Sclar Deveioprmenis Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bury Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
Cadcxton Reserve Power Limited™ LUK Ordinary 1002 Energy generation
Ca cias Energy Limiteg" LK Ordinary 100% Holding company

Cark Limied® Ireland Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of
Caswell Solar Farm Lisriteo™ UK
Cathk-r Energy Limited?” UK
Causigey Limnea™” UK
Cedar Erergy and infrastruciure Lirncec UK
CEPE Berceronre SARLT France
Certrate Eo‘l.ehzwe de Producuocn d Ernergie de France
Grandbo s SARL

France

Ecihenna de
bl SARLT Frarce

France
CEPE Haut du Saue’ France
CEZE de s Rocne Quatre Rveras SARL Frarce
CZPE du pays de St Seine SARLY France
CERS SA ST France
Chelson Meadow Erergy Limited” UK
Chusnon Solar Farm Holdings Lirited” UK
Chittering Sowr Two Limmsted” Ux
Cilgwyn Energy Liried” UK
Clarn Farr Lirmisten™ UK
Clararnond Solar SPYV 1 Linuted” UK
CL7 Developments Limiteg UK
CLP Envirogas dmited™ UK

UK

LK

UK

LK

UK

LUK

UK

UK

UK
CL=E RGC - 3 Livited” LK

Class of
shares

s SRR 7P

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Orchinary

Crdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary

. Holding
00%
100%
100%
160%

100%

1C0%

100%
160%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Principal
activity

Energy genérat:on
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generat:on
Energy gereration

Enargy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy gereration
Energy generation
Holding cormpany
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Darmant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company

Provision of O&M
services

Dormant campany
Dormant company
Helding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Helding cormpany
Energy generation
Energy generaticn

Energy generation

P ¢ tue
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

e

CLRFE ROC - 2A

Limited”™
CLPE ROC - & Limited”
CLPE ROC - 44 Limited”
Clyne Power Limitag™
Colsterworth Energy Lmited”
Connon Bridge Erergy Limed”
Coteshach Energy Limited™”

Cour Wird Farre {Scotland) Lir.ied!™
Cragre:l Tarm bimited™

Lt

Crayfern Homes (South Coast) Lirnited
Crayfern Limiteg!t

Crayfern Sunley (Sknfold) Limited?
¥

Craymarst L mited”

Cressing Solar Farm Limited™

Culvery Power Limiteg™

Cynon 2ower Limted™

Dafen Beserve Fower Limited™

Dairy House Solar Lirmited™

[Jeepdale Farm Solar Limted™
Coveryard Limited™

Drapeis Farm Cimiteg™

Dulacca Energy Project Co FTY Ltdh?
Dulacca Energy Project FinCo BTY Lrd*?
Culacca Energy Project Holaco Co PTY Ligi?
Dulacca WF Holdoo PTY Lid'?

Diyffryn Brodyn Limited™

Eakring Limited”

Elecsol Camargue SARL®

Flecsol France 7 SARL?

Liecsol France 11 SARL®

Elecsol Frarce 15 SARL®

Flecsol France 19 SARL*

BLBEE A 3 B ik et s o i e

Country of Classof Principal
incggggg’:ipn s?ares Helding activi?

UK“ Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Fnergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordirary  100% Ejf?fg?i?;c‘i
K Crdinary 100% gggﬁigztfjl;;gs
UK Ordinary  100% gjf;‘fjg;’”égi
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Austratia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Austratia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Austrahia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 160% Holding company
UK Ordinary 1002 Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary S0% Energy generation
France Ordinary 90% Energy generation
France Ordirary 100% Energy generation
France QOrdmary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name incorporation shares Holding activity
Elecse: France 22 SARL® fFrance Ordinary 100% Energy generat-on
Elecsol France 24 SARL? france Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
Elecsc. Frarice 25 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy gensraton
Elecso. France 28 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecso. France 41 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elacso. Haat var SARL® France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Flins Erergy 2 France SASS France Crdinary 100% Holding company
Elios Energy 2 Limited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Tlios Encray 3 France SAST France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Clios Erergy Howing: 2 Lrmited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Flins Energy Hoidngs 2 Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Heolding company
Elios Energy Holdngs cmitea™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding cormpany
Elios Rerewable Energy L.mited™ UK Ordinary 100% Helding company
- : . C truct i
Elvia Develoorrent Finance mited!s UK Ordinary 100% dc?r?ﬂi;:(c Et?ur?[rjmgf
- : Orc’imary o Financial services
Elvvia Holairgs Limited UK Deferred 100% holding companies
Preference ng companies
Ellva Homes ({Certral) Dmited UK Ordinary 100% Sgr:i;?it;?jl;‘ﬁgs
" £
Ftiva Horres iDormant 2; Limited!! UK Ordinary  100% g;:fé;ifu””;‘ms
I o 0 o Construction of
Elv a Hormes {Grange Road) Limited UK Qrdinary 100% domestic buildings
el
" ' £
Chva Homes (Netey) Limited!! UK Ordinary 100% gjrgff?r(ej?et;’,
1% >
Elrvia | . Tt ‘ . Constraction of
Elivia Homes (Southerrt Limited U Ordinary 100% domestic buildings
i >
. e ‘ N Construction of
Elrea =ormes (Zurbiton! Lemites UK Orginary 100% domestic buildings
s N v 1
Flivia Homies _mitec - UK Ordinary 100% Ejrf:;:?:;eg;
= i
Clhva North L ted! UK Ordinary 100% Ej\!fflr?gpg‘ri?etcoti
Construction of
Elivia Oxford Lirmed® UK Ordinary  100% g‘j;f;;gi’ﬁ;;gsof
own real estate
. i f
clivia South Lmiteg = UK Ordinary 100% Construction o

domestic buildings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

L L DR T RS PIPE N S T R I O e ]

Flviz Southern Limited®!

Elicombe Limited™

Energy Power Resaurces Limited™

EPR Dy Limited™

EPR Eye Limited”

EPR Glanford Limiteo™

EFR Renewable Energy Limied”
EPR Scorland Limiteg™

EPR Thetford Limised™

Eucalyptus Energy Heldings Limited™
Eucalyptus Energy Limited”™

Feltwell Energy Limited™

Fern Enercy Cour Holdings Limeted™
Fern Energy Moldings Limited™

Fern Energy Lirmited™

Fern Energy Wind Hoidings Limited™

Py

Fern Fibre Limiteg™”

a
m
=
0

Hesthcare Holdings Limited™
Ferninfrastructure Limited”™

Fern Renewable Energy Limited”
Ferm Rooftop Solar (A) Liriteo™

Fern Rooftop Solar (88D

Fern Rooftocp Solar (Zestec) Limites™
Ferr Trad rg Development Limied”™”

Fern Trad ng Group Limitad

Fern UK Power Develcpments Limited”

Fbrophios Limited™
Four Burrows Limited”

Fraisthorpe Wnd Farrm Limired™

Country of Class of Principal
incorporation shares Holding activity
Consfrucuor“ of
UK Ordnary  100% ‘;ﬁ;ﬁ:;“acngus‘gl‘;‘éso f
own real estate
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Enorgy projoct
UK Ordinary  100% if;f;‘;i?:r;‘t and
Services
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary i00% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
JK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 1006% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
DK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
UK Qrdinary 100% Holding cormpany
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK UK 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Supply of fertiliser
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation

R e b
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Giganet Fibre ttd™

Siganet Lirmited’™”

Gerichamier W rd Energy Limitest*™

Grange Wind Far-a Limilea”
Guardorigde SP 7.0 o'
Harbourme Power Limmited™

Haymaker (Mount M L td™

Haymaker (Nstewood, Holdings L

Haymaker (Matewood) _td™

Haymaker (Oaxiards) Holdings Limited”

Hayrnaker (Qak ards) [ td”
Helm Power 2 Limited”
Heim Fower Limited™
Higher Knapp Farm Limited”™
Hill End Farm wmited™
Hellarmoor Limiten™

Hull Reserve Power Limited™
Hureit S=v 1 Lrmutea™
Immungham Power L. ted™
Irevell Fower Lirrstece™

Jameson Road Energy Limited™”

Jurass.c Fibre Heldimgs Limited™

Juraes.c mibre Limited

D
—

K Powes emited”

Langar rower wiry tad’
_enbam Sclar Limited™
difte T Solar Limmited™”
Litheton Sciar Farre Limiied”
Leld Sormmor cansns ae”

Loddon Power Limited”™

Country of Class of
_Incorporation shares
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
Poland Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK QOrdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LIK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary

Principat

Holding activity

100%

160%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%
100%

o

1007

B

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
90%

90%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

1060%

Dormant company

Fibre netwaork
production

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Haolding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation

T N
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
s S ...[ncorporation  shares Holding actVity oo
Lovedean Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Lurmirance Soar Lirmsted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
M12 Sownons Lirited™ Uk Crdinary 100% Holding company
Manstorn Thorne Limied™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
March snergy Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Margen Povrer Umited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Mariey Traich Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
teadows Farm uimited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Melboarn Sclar Lrited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Meltor G Energy L mited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Meiton LS Holdirg Loited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton LG ROC Limited™ UK Ordinary 10G% é;ii;ijsmg
Melton Renewabie Tnergy (Holdings) Lrmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton Renewabie tnergy Newc2 Lim: ted™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton Rerewabte Energy UK Lrrited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Mil, Hill Farmn Solar Lirmimed™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Mirgay Farm Holding Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
MEP Decoy Ltd™” UK Ordinary 100% Eriergy generation
MSP Strete Lid™ UK Ordinary 10C% Energy generation
MSE Tregassow Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
MTS Hatchilanags Solar Lid™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Nevern Power Limited” UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
New Row “armn Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Mewlands Solar Limed”” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Minnig Farm Umited”™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
North Perrott Fruit Farm Lirnied” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Northwich Power Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
MoGs Erergy Limiteg”™ UK Crdinary 1007% Holding company
COogmore Power Limited”” K Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Oldhall Erergy Recovery Holdings Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
One Ashford Healthzare Limited UK Ordinary 89% E;‘Zﬁ;ﬁ:;gewices
Cine Hatfield Hospital Limited UK Ordinary  S0% Provision of

healthcare services
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

SRV

One = \,:jIT’WCdV'—‘ Partners Limited

Cria Wedgehitl Solar Fold.ngs Lirmited™
Orta Wedgenid Solar Lamited™

Falfreys Sarton Lirnited ™

Parciau Ho.dings L mited”

Parciad Limnec™
Park Broadband Umited”

Pearrmat Soar 2 Ld”

Pitchfore ondever Arfieic & Stockbateh)

Limited™
Pitts Fanrn Limited™”
Porihos So.ar Limited”

Pyrrs Lane Sciar Lid™

CQuueens ~ark Road Energy Limnted

Rangeford Care Lirmited™

Rangeford Chertsey Limited™

Fangeford Jrrencester amites”

Rargeford Dorking timitea”™
Rargeford Hoidings Lmited™

Rangeford Pickenng Liamited”™

Ranceford RAZ Limited™

Eangeford Retiraraent Living Hold rgs Ltg™

Rangeford Sraoleford Limed”
Reacnes —arm Lirited”
Redlake Powear Lmite™
Rysior BEstate Lmited™
Sarmimat SARL?

elay Power © mitea”™

SrE Fore L ten®

incorporation

Country of

masa

LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
LUK

UK
UK

LUK

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

France

LUK

UK

Class of
shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Principat
Holdmg actmty

TR T TN

85% Halding company
100% Helding company
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
160% Holding cormpany
100% Energy generation

Fibre network

100% production

100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generat:on
100% Holding company
100% Energy gereration

100% Energy generation

Care services for a

100% ‘
retiremant willage
100% Retrement village
development
100% Retirement viliage
development
100% Retirement village

development
100% Holding company

Retirement village

100% development

Retirement village
development
100% Holding company

Reftirement village
development

1G0% Energy gereration
100% Energy generat:on
1G0% Energy generat:on
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation

Fibre netwaork

100% production
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Country of
incorporation shares

- B 03 bt B R BRR VO £ R HE BT AR P ER Lo e 1k 0 e R KB R AR ARRAT K0

singrug Hold ngs Limited™
Singrag Limied™
Six Hels Lane (Ragdae) Limited™

Skel

=]

reoke Enercy Line ted”™

tlavghiergate Limited

10y

snererton Renswable Power Fues Limites”

Sretterton Renewabls Power Holdings Limi

Sneterton Renawatle Power Limited™
Sciarfl LPO8 SARLS
Solark SPOT SARLY
Sowarfi SPRZ SARL?

Solarfi SPU4 SARL®

o
(%)
n

Solarfi SPCS SARL®

L.

Solarfi SPOR SARLY

Solarh SPL0 SARL

Loutncombe Farm Limited™

St Asanh Power Limited™

Steadfast Farkhouse Solar Liritag™
Steadfast Rudge Solar Led™

Sieadfast Shipten Belinger So.ar Limited™
Stetlar Power Limited™

Stoneyinll Energy Lirmited™

Suis Energy Limited™
Summierston Energy Limited®”

Suntey Crayfern Lavan: LLPY
Swish Fitre Contracting Limiteg®
Swish Fiore Lirmited®

Swish Fiore Netwarks Lid®
Swish Fiore Services Lirmied®

Swish Fibre Yorishire®

Swish Trading Lirmared™

I
U

ed”

UK
UK
UK
UK
LK

UK

Ui
France
France
France
France
France
France
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

Class of

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
NA

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Holding activity

100%
100%
160%
160%
160%

100%

100%
100%
10C%
10G%
100%
100%
106%
10G%
100%
100%
100%
106%
100%

80%

100%

80%

Principal

R R R H

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation

Supply of biomass
fuel

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy genaration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company
Holding company
Energy generstion
NA

Fibre network
produchion

Hotding company

Fibre network
production

Fibre network
production

Fibre network
production

Holding company

S o o e
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

Name ... . ....Jncorporation shares | MHolding activity . .
TGC Solar 102 Lmited™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generat.on
TGO Sotar 107 Limited” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generat.on
TG Solar 68 Limed” UK Crdinary 100% Ernergy generation
TGO Sclar 83 Lirmted” UK Ordinary 100% Emergy gereration
The Fern Power Company | mited”” LK Ordinary 10G% Holding company
The sodies Sotar Farre Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Enargy generation
Thoresby Estate (Budoy) Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Tikngharn Fower Lirited” UK QOrdinary 100% Energy generation
Todnilis Energy Limited”™ LK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Tredown Farm Lirmated” LK Crainary 100% Erergy generation
Turves Solar Limited” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UKSE 15 Solar Limted™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Uniteg Mines Eriergy omiten”™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
VESE L™ UK Ordirary  100% ;‘g;u"cfzfrk
Victona Solar Lirited” UK COrdinary 100% Energy generation
Viners Enargy m ted LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Voafi Limitea” UK Crdinary 100% ;i:gsurggfm
Vaoltafrance G1 SARLS France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Voltafrance Ob SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Voltafrance 13 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Veltafrance SARL France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Vorboss Lrrited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Yorbozs 1S 1~ USA Ordinary 100% ;igjulifgi]ork
Wadswiox Greer Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Sg;\rr:trge:nt vilage
Wadswicrk Greer Property tervices mvted” UK Ordinary 100% igrr\r/‘jlfl?sf;?;?e
Warringtor Pover smited” LJK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Waer.oo Sclar Park tvo dings Limieed™ UK Ordinary 100% Heolding company
Water.oo Sclar Park miwed”™ UK Crdinary 109% Energy generation
Wee Farm 2 Limtea” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Westwood Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn

Westwood Soar Limieg” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

Name & , _Incorporation shares . .Holding activity i
Wetherden Energy L\rrn'grekqﬁ MU}/ Crdinary 100% é;ergy generation
Wharf Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whiddon Farm Limized™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Whinney Hill Znergy Lamited™ UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Wincelle Solar H#oldings Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Wolvernampton Power Ltd” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Croft Wend Farm Lirmsted '3 UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
WSE Bradiord Limmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
WEE Hulavington =oidings Limiied™ LK Ordinary 100% Haolding company
WSE Hulavington Lirmited” LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
W5E Park Wail Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Pyde Drove Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Zested Asset Managerent Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date

Fern Rooftop Solar (BED) Limited T T serneraoze
Cuckoo rterret Ltd 31/08/2022
Virrif Digital Limited 13/07/2022
40fi Limited 2211172022

Subsidares exermipt frorm audit by virtue of 34804 of the Companies Act 2006
Tsunsdianes exempt from audin oy virtue o s4/9A of the Comparnies Act 2006
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

D:ssoived or sold durlng the year and up unt;l sugnmg

1eldings L\m\fed
Rioge Wind Acquisition Lirnited
Fern Encrgy RicgeWirg Acquisiions Lirmited
Fern Erergy RidgeWing Holdings Limited

1 Energy Sarinessh ps Hoidings Limited
Fraistrorpe (Holding) Lirnited
OY Oidhisll Energy Recovery Limited
Comm?2l Lid
Carlington Poirt Holaco Pty Lirmded
Darlington Point Salar Farre Pty Limited
on Fomnt Sabholdce Py Limired

Darlingto
[Sfedeild

Powvssr Deyaloprent Lira e
Voyrinkarngas Wind Fasm Oy

Saunamaa ¥éind Farmm Oy

. Date
2070772021
20/07/2021
14/09/2021
21/09/2021
21/09/2021
29/03/2022
13/09/2022
15/09/2022
08/07/2022
08/07/2022
08/07/2022
231122021
2311212021
23/12/2021

The registerad office of ail comrpan es listed above 5 at 6th Floor

ul. Grzybowska 2429, DG-131 Warsaw, Poland

2 Pirsent Masons LLE Capta: Sguare 58 Maomson Sreet,

[¥N

1 West Regent Street, Giasgow, GF 1AP

4. 22 rue Alg-onse de Newville, 75017 Fans, Frarce

9

2. 6tr Fleer, 2 Grand Caral Zguare, Cublic 2, DG2 A342, Ireand

& The Carrnage Hou

7 Zone industrielle de

8. 13 zalsbury Piace, London, Engiana, WiH 177

=t

2 The Corporaticn Trust Company, Corporation Trust Tenter, 12

ined States

15 4th Soor Saltire Court, 20 Caste Terqace, Edinburgh, Scotang

LI Accile Foudse, Mercury Park Wycomoe Lane, Wookarm

3000 Austral

i3 Besufort Cour, £gg Farm Lane, HKings Langiey, Hertfordsnre,

I

/-8 Stradford Pace, Loncor, Englandg, WLC 1AY

Toe direciors beiave

e, Stabion Works, Station Road, Clavercon, Warwickstire, dniteu <imgdo

that the carry =g vaiue of the investrenic s supeorted by their und

3% Hoborn, Lendon, cnglanc, ECIN 2417

Edinburgh, Scotlana, EH3 8BS

i)
Q
a
3
@)
<
(@)
o

Courtine 115 Rue Du Moure.et 840500 Avignon, France

0% Crange Street, Wilm ngrorn L9801

Gregr, Hgr Wycomos, [ngland, H=2L0 S-H

WA 2R

erlying riet 335213

s



5 APPENDIX - SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)

Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

3

Fern Trading Limited is an unlisted company. Every month, our Board of Directors agrees a prce at which it

will be willing to 1ssue new shares. The share price is unaudied

The figures peiow include the share orice of the previcus parent (now Fern Trading Group Limited) as well
- P h =

as this enuty

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

12
18
17
16

s P
15 me
R, ot

14 i

13 MM
12 M
PR
11
10

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Performance is calculated pased on the sale price for Fern's shares at 2 June each year. The snare price is
eC

rot subject to audit by Ermst & Yourng LLP

Annual discrete parformancs

Financial Year Discrete share price performance
June 2021-22 - o 9.91%

June 2020-21 4.87.%

swnezoiwzo . o3%

June 20:8-19 6.23%

June 20.7-18

June2ist7 5.54%

June 2[‘215;16 o 3.83%

June 2014-15 Czeex
Jure 2013-14 7 7 o 7 7 3.72%

-Ju-r;,e 2012—17) ' - R - 397% .

June 2011-12 - | ) V V o 1.02%

1.05%

Source Octopus Investrnenis Lrited, 2 June 2022
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Directors and advisers

Directors

FS Latham
KD Wiley

Registered office

oth Floor, 33 Hokorn,
Lonaor, England ECIN 247
P Bar ow

T Artnur tappointed 1 July 2022, Independent auditors
e Y

grnst & Young LLP
Bedford House,
16 Bedford Streer
Jefast BTz 707

Company secreiary

Octopus Compary Secretanal Services Limied

Company numbeay

12601636 :

Forward-looking statements
Tnis Annual Report contains certam forwara-look ng stater-ents resated 1o the Cormparsy's future s Ncss
and financial cerformance and future everts or developmerts. Tnese statermerts are based o the current
knowledge anc exoecianons of managerent arc are sLbject to assumphons, risks ard uncerfairties, scme
of wrich are related (0 faclors that are beyord tre control of the Compeny. Accordingly, No assurance can
Le gven that ary partcular expectation will be met and ‘crward-look ng staterments regarding na

actvities should ot be aken as 3 represantation that s.oh trands or actvities will continue in the future Past
performance cannot be relied on as a guide to future perforrmarce. Nothirg i this Annual Report shadla be

construed 33 a oroft “orecas:




